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Royal & Sun Alliance Insurance ple

Strategic Report
for the year ended 31 December 2014

The Company 1s an important part of RSA Insurance Group plc (the Group) The Company transacts the majority of the UK business,
as described 1n the Annual Report & Accounts of the Group The directors of the Company have considered whether the Group
approach to strategy, sk management, performance review and custody of assets fully meets the needs of the Company as a separate
regulated entity They have concluded that it does

The directors present their annua!l report on the affairs of the Company and the audited financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2014

Business review, principal activities and future outlook

The principal activity of the Company, its subsidianies and overseas branches 1s the transaction of insurance and related financial
services in the United Kingdom and overseas The pnincipal subsidianes and associated undertakings are listed 1n note 34 1o the
financial statements

The results for the Company show a profit on ordinary activities before tax of £387m (2013 /28m) for the year, due principally to
£2,157m (20713 £435m) of dividend income from subsidiary undertakings offset by £1,870m (2043 £a:l) /mpmirments of subsidiary
undertakings following capital reductions and distnbutions Gross premiums written were £3,.885m (2013 £4,22/m) The funds
attributable to equity holders of the Company were £4,359m as at 31 December 2014 (3] December 2013 £3,922m) The increase in
shareholders” funds 15 due prnincipally to profit for the year and the 1ssue of £395m of share capital offset by the repayment of £294m
of subordinated toan notes classified as equity instruments

In 2014 the Company announced the sale of 1ts branches in Singapore, Hong Kong and Italy, these disposals are expected to complete
in 2015 Gross premiums written for direct business for these and other branches excluded from the UK business of the Company
were £213m (2013 £179m) representing 6 0% (2013 4 9%) of the total

In the United Kingdom, which 1s the Company's major market, the Company 1s a leading Commercial tnsurer and a top five Personal
lines insurer through direct and affinity channels In Commercial the Company offers a full suite of products across Property, Liabiiity,
Motor and Marine and distributes predominantly through insurance brokers In Personal the Company provides Household, Motor
and Pet insurance through insurance brokers and affimty partners as well as MORE TH>N. 1ts direct businesses

In the UK we have made progress with management actions on pricing and underwriting that included both planned exits and focused
growth Adverse weather in the first gquarter together with reserve additions 1n Commercial have affected profitabihty However,
expenses are coming down and the good progress made with cost reductions 1n the first half has continued nto the second half,
including a reduction of over 500 (7% ) FTE duning the year

At a headline level, UK net earned premiums of £2,569m were down 15% However premums (excluding Motability) were down
6%, with Personal down 6% and Commercial down 6%

Household premiums were down 3% reflecting competiive conditions and a sofiening rate environment In Personal Motor,
premums were down 26% as a result of our portfolio actions and pricing discipline, although the steep declines seen in the first half
have now begun to slow In 20i4 we launched our MORE TH>N Smart Wheels ‘black box’ telemaucs product aimed at young
dnivers, and MORE TH>N Drnive, an app that allows drivers to track their driving behaviour, which are showing promising growth
Pet premiums were up 16% mainly driven by rate increases

Across our Commercial business we have maintained underwnting discipline n a competiuve market and a soft rate environment
Reported net premiums were down 22% to £1,393m primanly driven by a reduction 1n Motability premiums as a result of our new
contract terms which took effect from 1 October 2013 Motability net writien premiums 1n 2014 were £57m (2013 £351m) Inour
German Specialty business we ceased writing Risk Managed business with effect from 1 October 2014 but continue to actively write
and grow our Marine business there

In UK Personal, Household continued to perform strongly despite the impact of adverse weather 1n the first quarter, while a loss 1n
Motor reflected a highly competitve market but nevertheless a sigmficant improvement from the loss recorded in 2013  Pet
profitability was disappointing due to hugher than anticipated claims inflation, for which we have implemented rating action to address

The UK Commercial underwnting loss was driven by the adverse development of the prior year Professional Indemmty book (£46m)
Our Property book suffered an underwniting loss driven by elevated large losses and weather losses following storms in
January/February and also in June 1n Europe Commercial Motor produced a significantly improved COR of 94 7% reflecting the
benefits of the restructured Motability arrangements and better performance across the book
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Outlook

Continuing improvements 1n our core UK trading performance together with ongoing cost actions give us confidence as we look out
to 2015 We target improving profitability and a return to modest top line growth

Principal risks and uncertamties

The Company’s principal risks and uncertainties are integrated within and managed together with the principal risks of the Group
The principal risks and uncertainties of the Group, which include those of the UK business and branches, and hence the Company, are
set out 1n the estimation techniques, nsks, uncertainties and contingencies on pages 132 to 136, and 1n risk management on pages 44
to 47 and 137 to 150 of the Annual Report & Accounts of the Group which do not form part of this report

A Group- wide review of governance and internal control systems was imitiated during 2014 The programme 1s driving enhancements
to the internal control system globally to ensure consistency of oversight and reporting 15 achieved with sufficient objectivity and
independence

A discussion of the management of financial risk 1s set out below
Financial risk management

The Company 1s exposed to financial nisk through 1ts financial assets, financial liabilities, reinsurance assets and nsurance habilities
In particular the key financial risk 15 that the proceeds from the realisation of 1ts financial assets are not sufficient to fund the obligations
anising from 1its imsurance contracts

The Company manages 1ts financial assets within a framework that has been developed to seek to ensure the ability to meet 1its
obligations under insurance contracts

The Company reviews the duration of 1ts labilities and asset portfolios to ensure that they remain broadly matched Investment
directives hmit permissible duration ranges within the individual portfolios These directives also mnclude objecuves for liquidity,
asset sector concentration and credit quality The Company 1s not party to any arrangements for which hedge accounting 1s used

Credit risk

The primary sources of credit risk within the Company are investment and treasury activities and reinsurance counterparty risk Within
the investment management and treasury activities, a range of bank counterparty concentration and credit quality limits together with
other controls are mn place to ensure that exposure 1s managed New reinsurance cover 1s placed with remnsurers that are authorised as
Approved Remnsurance Counterparties recommended by the Group Remsurance Credit Commuttee

Market risk

Market risk arises withm the Company’s investment portfolics A committee oversees the Company’s investment strategy and sets
appropnate nsk limits to ensure that no significant concentrations to individual companues disproportionate exposure 1o seclors arise

Liqudity risk

Liquidity risk 1s considered to be a low risk category Liquidity 1s managed such that the Company matntains a mintinum level of cash
or cash equivaients or lighly liquid assets that can be hquidated within a maximum stated period of ime Contingency funding plans
are prepared and monttored to ensure that these minimum levels are met even 1n stress conditions

Reputational risk

Reputational risk 1s the current or prospective risk to eamings and capital anising from adverse perception of the image of RSA on the part
of customers, counterparties, shareholders, investors or regulators  The External Communications team keeps under constant review the
threats to RSA’s reputation, both internal and external, and the Rusk function works with them to promote a culture of responsibility from
the front line businesses to the Board The tools used include a reputational risk register, clear and simple processes, training, external threat
and perception monitoring and crisis management plans
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Strategrc risk

Strategic risk 1s the current and prospective impact on earmings or captal arising from adverse business decisions, improper implementation
of decisions, or lack of responsiveness to industry changes This nsk is a function of the compatbility of an organisation's strategic goals, the
business strategies developed to achieve those goals, the resources deployed against these goals, and the quality of implementation The
strategic nsk profile 1s kept under continuous review by the Group Executive Committee and forms a key element of quarterly Board Risk
Committee meetings

Operational risk

Operational nisk 1s the nisk of direct or indirect losses resuiting from human factors, external events and madequate or failed internal
processes and systems Operational risks are inherent in the Company’s operations and are typical of any large enterprise Major
sources of operational nsk can mclude operational process reliability, information secunty, outsourcing of operations, dependence on
key suppliers, implementation of strategic and operational change, integration of acquisitions, fraud, human error, customer service
quality, inadequacy of business continuity arrangements, recruitment, training and retention of staff, and social and environmental
impacts

The Company manages operational risk using a range of techniques and tools to identify, monitor and mitigate 1ts operational risk in
accordance with Group’s risk appetite These tools include Risk and Control Self Assessments, Key Risk Indicators (e g fraud and
service wndicators), Scenario Analyses and Loss Reporting In addition, the Group has developed a number of contingency plans
including Incident Management and Business Continuity Plans Quantitative analysis of operational risk exposures materal to the
Company 1s used to inform dectsions on the overall amount of capital held and the adequacy of contingency arrangements

Key performance indicators

The directors of the Group manage the Group’s operations on a divisional basis as described in the Annual Report & Accounts of the
Group For this reason the Company’s directors believe that analysis using key performance indicators (KPIs) for the UK business in
aggregate 1s relevant to the Company

A key measure used by the Company in managing the busmess 1s the technical resuit which 1n 2014 was a loss of £218m (2013 loss
of £206m). This measure 15 calculated by aggregating eamed premiums less claims incurred less expenses Other key performance
indicators include premium growth and regulatory solvency Details of UK premiums are included within the Business Review above
As at 31 December 2014 the Company has an unaudited Solvency | surplus of approximately £1.8bn (2073 £0 3bn) and a coverage
ratio of approximately 2 2 times at 31 December 2014 (20/3 { 2 fimes)

Further information on financial and non-financial KPIs 1s detailed in the Annual Report & Accounts of the Group (which do not form
part of this report) within the Strategic report on pages 2 to 47 and the Directors’ and corporate govérnance report on pages 48 to 106

The Annual Report & Accounts of the Group are available on RSA's website at www rsagroup com/ar2015
Employment policy

In 2014 we continued to put our strong levels of employee engagement to the test Our people reacted quickly and rose to the challenges
we faced by continuing to support our customers when they needed us They’ve embedded the necessary changes required and
responded well to all new policies we’ve implemented, whilst endeavouring to improve the customer experience

As aresult of actions to reduce our expense base, our permanent FTE across the Company reduced by 518 to 7,965 — a 6% reduction
This period of change and uncertamnty has been difficult for our people, but we have maintained our commitment to be open, honest
and to communicate early about any changes that impact them We have also continued to work closely with our Union partners and
have consulted fully on all changes

The Company has mawntamed 1ts commitment to foster an environment where diversity 1s embraced and encouraged In 2013, we
commutted to strengthen our pipeline of women 1n semor leadership positions

The inmiatives we launched in 2013 to improve the diversity of our workforce — ncluding our global female sponsorship programme,
female networking events and mentoring programmes, enhanced flexible working opportunities and the increased ntake of females
on our global talent programmes — are starting to pay off and build foundations for the future




Royal & Sun Alliance Insurance plc

Strategic Report
for the year ended 31 December 2014

Employment policy {(continued)

Despite the challenges we have faced and our desire to reduce expenses, we have continued to focus on the development of our people
Qur signature leadership development programmes have been externally recognised as world class

¢  The Executive Development Programme (EDP) - focuses on increasing the leadership capabilities of our senior employees
regarded as having the potential to be amongst the future top ieadership of the Company

*  The Senior Talent Acceleration (STA) Programme — designed to enable high-potential leaders to make the transition to
sentor and executive leadership roles

¢ The Fast Track Programme — 1s styled on a ‘Mini-MBA’ to support our emerging talent to accelerate their careers in RSA

As a result of our commutment to developing our people we have been able to retain our critical talent during what has been a period
of change and uncertainty

We have continued to use our long established and award winning Technical Academy to develop and enhance our critical insurance
skills As a result we continue to have some of the strongest underwriting, pricing, acteanial and claims capabilities 1n our industry
We have also focused on bmlding our skills and expertise in new areas such as our Digual Centre of Excellence and Telematic Centre
of Excellence that are already yielding strong results

At RSA, we've always encouraged an open and honest culture that fosters trust and respect between our employees and between us
and our customers, brokers and partners Given the business challenges we’'ve faced this year we’ve placed an even greater level of
importance on creahing an internal environment 1n which people have their voices heard by introducing a number of new platforms
for them to do this

We've introduced 4 new annual employee survey called Yoursay, which gives people an opportumty to ‘shout out' about the things
they want to improve or change The volume of ‘shout out’ verbatim comments will provide us with valuable insight for the year
ahead and the improvements we can make

We've introduced Yammer (an internal social enterprise network) as a place where we can connect openly and honestly to debate
1ssues and 1deas Over 90% of people have registered and we have, on average 10,000 comments posted every month

We’ve strengthened our culture by introducing an award winning Culture Risk Index and Assessment which helps leaders and HR
teams to identfy and manage cultural risk and 1dentify potential 1ssues around our cutture that could lead to a failure of ethics, controls
or governance before they occur

We believe we can create competitive advantage by building and maintaiming a customer- centric culture that 1s open and transparent
where high performance 1s recognised and rewarded, and appropnate actions are taken to address underperformance

By order of the Board

oA ACLN
E Bell

For and on behalf of

Roysun Limited

Secretary
25 February 2015
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hvidends

Interim dividends of £ml (2013 £400m} were declared and paid during the year The directors do not recommend payment of a final
ordinary dividend {2013 £fnul)

Directors

The names of the current directors are hsted on page 1 Mr C J R Rash served as 4 director until his resignation on 23 Apnil 2014 Mr
A P Brown served as a director until his resignation on 14 May 2014 Mr D A Weymouth served as a director unul hus resignation on
7 January 2015 Mr P Whittaker, Mr W R B McDonnell and Mr S Lew1s were appointed directors on 23 October 2014, | December
2014 and 1 January 2015 respectively The other directors served throughout the year None of the directors had any interests in the
shares of the Company

Information included within the Strategic Review

Information relating to overseas branches, financial sk management, likely future developments and the Company’s employment
pohicy 1s contamned within the Strategic Report on pages 2 to 5 and 1s incorporated 1nto this report by reference

Auditor
Each of the persons who 1s a director at the date of approval of this report confirms that
» <o far as the director 15 aware, there 15 no relevant audit information of which the Company’s audtor 1s unaware, and

e the director has taken all steps that he ought to have taken as a director in order to make himself aware of any relevant audit
information, and to establish that the Company’s auditor 1s aware of that information

This confirmation 1s given and should be interpreted in accordance with the provisions of 418 of the Compantes Act 2006

KPMG LLP have confirmed their willingness to continue 1n office as anditor of the Company for the year ending 31 December 2015
A resolution for their reappointment will be proposed at the 2015 Annual General Meeting

Essential Contracts and change of control

The Company does not consider that it, or any of its subsidianies, has any significant agreements to which the company 1s a party that
take cffect, alier or termmnate upon a change of control of the company following a takeover bid that are required to be disclosed
pursuant to paragraph 13(2)(J) of Schedule 7 of the Large and Medum Sized Companies and Groups {Accounts and Reports)

Regulations 2008 (as amended), other than as disclosed below

Under the Company’s £500m five year semor commutted debt faculity, if a change of control occurs, if the majonity of lenders requure,
the facility can be cancelled with immediate effect and all cutstanding loans, together with accrued interest, become due and payable

Directors’ responsibilities

The directors’ responsibility statement 1s included on page 8 of these accounts
Post balance sheet events

Post balance sheet events are set out tn note 35 on page 51 of these accounts
Pelitical Donations

The Company made no political donations in the year (2013 £nud)
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Going concern

In considening the appropriateness of the going concern basis, the Board has reviewed the Company's ongoing financial commitments
for the next 12 months and beyond The Bourd's review included the Company's strategic plans and updated forecasts, capital position,
hqudity and credit facilities and investment portfoho The Company maintains close and regular dialogue with its regulators
throughout the journey to internal model approval and the directors are confident that the Company will continue to meet all future
regulatory capital requirements As a result of the review, the directors have satisfied themselves that 1t 1s appropriate to prepare these
financial statements on a going concern basis

By order of the Board

o A NOLL

E Bell

For and on behalf of
Roysun Limited
Secretary

25 February 2015

-
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Statement of Directors’ responsibilities in respect of the Strategic Report and Directors’ Report and the
financial statements

The directors are responsible for preparing the Strategic Report and Directors’ Report and the financial statements tn accordance with
applicable law and regulations

Company law requures the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year Under that law they have elected to prepare
the financial statements 1n accordance with UK Accounting Standards and apphcable law (UK Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice)

Under company law the directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the company and of the profit or loss of the company for that period In prepanng these financial statements,
the directors are required to

* select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,
s make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent,

¢  state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and explamned
n the financial statements, and

+  prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless 1t 1s inappropriate to presume that the company will continue
in business

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the Company’s
transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Company and enable them to ensure that
the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006 They have general responsibility for taking such steps as are reasonably
open to them to safeguard the assets of the company and to prevent and detect fraud and other urregulanities




Independent auditor’s report to the members of Royal & Sun Alhance Insurance ple

We have audited the financial statements of Royal & Sun Alhance Insurance plc for the year ended 31 December 2014 set out on
pages 10 to 51 The financial reporting framework that has been applied wn their preparation 1s applicable law and UK Accounting
Standards (UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) having regard to the statutory requirement for insurance companies 1o
mamntain equalisatton provisions The nature of equalisation provisions, the amounts set aside at 31 December 2014, and the effect of
the movement in those provisions during the year on shareholders' funds, the balance on the general bustness technical account and
profit before tax, are disclosed tn note 23

Thus report 1s made solely to the Company's members, as a body, 1n accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Compantes Act 2006
Our audut work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company’s members those matters we are required to state 1o them
in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose To the fullest extent permutted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to
anyone other than the Company and the Company’s members, as a body for our audit work, for this report, or for the opimons we
have formed

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditor

As explained more fully 1n the Directors’ Responsibilities Statement set out on page 8, the directors are responsible for the preparation
of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view  Our responsibility 1s to audit, and express an
opimon on, the financial statements 1n accordance with apphcable law and International Standards on Audiiing (UK and Ireland)
Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board’s Ethical Standards for Auditors

Scope of the audat of the financial statements

A description of the scope of an audit of financial statements 1s provided on the Financial Reporting Council’s website at
www frc org uk/avditscopeukprivate

Opinion on financial statements

In our opimon the financial statements

* give atrue and fair view of the state of the Company’s affairs as at 31 December 2014 and of 1ts profit for the year then ended,
¢ have been properly prepared in accordance with UK Generally Accepted Accounting Pracuce, and

*  have been prepared 1n accordance with the requirements of the Compames Act 2006

Opimnion on other matter prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opimon the information given 1n the Strategic Report and the Directors’ Report for the financial year for which the financial
statements are prepared 1s consistent with the financial statements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Compantes Act 2006 requires us to report to you 1f, in our
opmion

* adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received from branches not
visited by us, or

® the financial statements are not 1n agreement with the accounting records and returns, or
¢ certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made, or

* we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit

Moy Pt

Murray Raisbeck (Senior Statutory Auditor),

for and on behalf of KPMG LLP Statutory Auditor
Chartered Accountants

15 Canada Square

Canary Wharf

London

El4 5GL

25 February 2015




Technical account — General business

Royal & Sun Alliance Insurance plc

Profit & loss account
for the year ended 31 December 2014

2014 2013
Notes £m £m
Gross premiums written 6 3,885 4,221
Outward remsurance premiums (982) (701}
Premiums written, net of reimnsurance 2,903 3,520
Change 1n the gross provision for unearned premiums 43 (88)
Change 1n the provision for unearned premiums, reinsurers’ share 314 95
Earned premriums, net of reinsurance 3,260 3,527
Claims pard
Gross amount (2,574) (2,739)
Reinsurers’ share 290 355
(2,284) (2,384)
Change in the provision for claims
Gross amount 83 (D
Reinsurers’ share (3) (40)
80 {47)
Claims mcurred, net of remsurance (2,204) (2,431)
Acquisition costs (983) (1.033)
Change 1n deferred acquisition costs 7 15
Administrative expenses (317) (315)
Reinsurance commissions and profit participation 34 36
Net operating expenses (1,273) (1,297}
Amortisation of renewal nghts 15 (1 (5
Balance on the techmcal account before change in equalisation provision (218) (2006)
Change 1n the equalisation provision 23 13) 3
Balance on the Technical Account for General Business (231) (209)

All amounts relate to contnuing operations

The notes on pages 14 to 51 form an integral part of these accounts
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Non-techmecal account

Royal & Sun Alliance Insurance plc

Profit & loss account (continued}
for the year ended 31 December 2014

2014 2013
Notes £m £m
Balance on the Technical Account for General Business (231) (209)
Investment income 12 2,326 609
Gains on the realisation of investments 12 35 -
2,361 609
Unrealised gans/(losses) on trading investments / investment property 12 161 (135)
Impairment of subsidiary undertakings 17 (1,870) -
Investment expenses, charges and interest 12 (119) (110)
Foreign exchange losses 5 (6)
Other charges (1 (L)
Operating Profit 306 148
Profit/(loss) on disposal of subsidiaries 17 81 (20)
Profit on ordinary activities before tax 387 128
Taxation on profit on ordinary activities 13 (103) 46
Profit for the financial year attributable to shareholders 284 174
All amounts relate to continuing operations
Statement of total recogmsed gans and losses for the year ended 31 December 2014
2014 2013
Notes £fm £m
Profit for the financial year 284 174
Foreign exchange gains/(losses) 1 n
Tax credit/(charge) on foreign exchange losses 2 1))
Movement 1n valuation of subsidiary and participating nterests 17,18 (63) (650)
Pension fund actuarial gains/(losses) 10 168 (145
UK deferred tax (charge)/credit attributable to actuarial losses 10 (33) 25
Total recogmsed gamns and losses relating to the year 359 (602)
Reconcibation of movement in shareholders’ funds
Profit
Share Share and loss
Capital  Premium account 2014 2013
Notes £m £m £m £m £m
Shareholders’ funds at I January 1,128 2.646 (224) 3,550 4,575
Increase in share capital / premium 87 308 . 395 -
Sharcholders’ recogmised (losses)/gains - - 359 359 (602)
Interest on subordinated loan note equity instrument net of
tax 21 - - (23) (23) 23)
Dividends paid 14 - - - - (400)
Sharehelders’ funds at 31 December 1,215 2,954 112 4,281 3550

The notes on pages 14 to 51 form an integral part of these accounts
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Royal & Sun Alliance Insurance plc

Balance sheet
as at 31 December 2014

ASSETS 2014 2013
Notes £m £m
Intangible assets 15 23 19
Investments
Land and butldings 16 362 306
Investments in group undertakings and participating interests
Investment n subsidiary undertakings 7 8,306 10,229
Interests 1n associated undertakings 18 18 15
8,324 10,244
Other financial mnvestments
Shares and other vanable yield secunties and units in unit trusts 240 362
Debt secunties and other fixed income securities 4,635 3281
Loans and deposits with credit institutions 125 74
16 5,000 37
Deposits with ceding undertakings 1 1
Total investments 13,687 14,268
Remnsurers’ share of technical provisions
Provision for unearned premiums 563 256
Claims outstanding 759 768
1,322 1024
Debtors
Debtors arising out of direct insurance operations - policyholders 302 314
Debtors ansing out of direct 1nsurance operations - intermediaries 1,319 1,362
Debtors ansing out of reinsurance operations 522 515
Amounts owed by Group undertakings 316 1,563
Deferred taxation 25 153 240
Other debtors, tncluding taxation 13 181 204
2,793 4,198
Other assets
Tangible assets 19 83 85
Cash at bank and 1n hand 131 203
214 288
Prepayments and accrued income
Accrued interest and rent 59 53
Deferred acquisition costs 449 453
Other prepayments and accrued income 75 9¢
583 596
18,624 20,393
Pension fund asset LG 87 2
Total assets 18,711 20,395

The notes on pages 14 to 51 form an integral part of these accounts
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Royal & Sun Alliance Insurance plc

Balance sheet (continued)
as at 31 December 2014

LIABILITIES 2014 2013
Notes £m £m
Capital and reserves
Called up share captal 20 1,215 1,128
Share premium account 2,954 2646
Profit and loss account 112 (224)
Shareholders’ funds 4,281 3.550
Other capital instruments
Subordinated loan notes classified as equity 1nstruments 21 78 372
Funds attributable to equity holders 4,359 31922
Subordinated habihities 21 492 492
Techmical provisions
Provision for unearned premiums 2,309 2,362
Claims outstanding 22 4,697 4,810
Equalisation provision 23 332 319
7,338 7,491
Provisions for other risks 24 55 45
Deposits received from reinsurers 3 3
Credttors
Creditors arising out of direct insurance operations 116 119
Creditors arising out of reinsurance operations 546 227
Amounts owed to credit institutions 26 342 364
Amounts owed to Group undertakings 5,009 7.223
Other creditors including taxation and social security 27 128 116
6,141 8,049
Accruals and deferred income 239 203
18,627 20,205
Pension fund hability 10 84 190
Total labilities 18,711 20,395

The notes on pages 14 to 51 form an mtegral part of these accounts

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 25 February 2015 and are signed on its behalf by

Sl

Director

S LQW!S

13

Director

R HO\.{SW‘OH



Royal & Sun Alliance Insurance plc

Notes to the accounts
1 Accounting Policies

Basis of preparation

The financial statements are prepared 1n accordance with applicable UK accounting standards and in comphance with the Companies
Act 2006, including schedule 3 of the accounting regulations 1ssued under the Act (Schedule 3) and the Statement of Recommended
Practice (SORP) on Accounting for Insurance Business 1ssued by the Association of British Insurers 1n December 2005 (as amended
in December 2006), having regard to the statutory requirement for insurance companies to maintain equahisation provisions (see note
23) As noted 1n the investment accounting policy the true and fair override has been adopted m respect of the valuauon of the
Company’s investment properties and no depreciation 15 provided The Company has taken advantage of the exemption under Section
400 of the Companies Act 2006 from the requirement to prepare consolidated financial statements as 1t 1s a wholly-owned subsidiary
of RSA Insurance Group ple, which prepares group accounts The financial statements have been prepared under the current value
rules, as permitted by Schedule 3, on the going concern basis

In considering the appropniateness of the going concern basis, the Board has reviewed the Company’s ongoing financial commitments
for the next twelve months and beyond The Board's review mcluded strategic plans and updated forecast, capital posiuon, hquidity
and credit facithties and investment portfolio As a result of this review the directors have sausfied themselves that it 1s appropriate to
prepare these financial statements on a going concern basis

a) Insurance Contracts — product classification

Insurance contracts are those contracts that transfer significant insurance risk at the inception of the contract Insurance risk 1s
transferred when the Company agrees to compensate a policyholder 1f a spectfied uncertain future event (other than a change 1n a
financial vanable) adversely affects the policyholder Any contracts not meeting the definttion of an 1nsurance contract are classified
as investment contracts or derivative contracts, as approprnate and measured in accordance with the policies below

b) General insurance business
.  Underwriting result

The underwriting result, being the balance on the techmical account before change 1n equalisation provisions, 1s accounted for on an
annual basis whereby the incurred cost of claims, commission and related expenses are charged against the earned proportion of
premiums, net of reinsurance Premiums wnitten are accouanted for in the year in which the contract 1s entered 1nto and include
estimates where the amounts are not determined at the balance sheet date Premiums wrntten exclude taxes Duues levied on
premiums and directly related expenses, e g commussions are recogmised as expenses Premiums are earned as revenue over the
period of the contract and are calculated principally on a daily pro-rata basis Commuission and other acquisiton costs incurred in
writing the business are deferred and amortised over the pertod in which the related premiums are earned

Claims paid represents all payments made during the period whether arsing from events during that or earlier peniods
The balance on the general business techmcal account s arrived at after taking account of changes in the equatisation provision
1. Technical provisions

The provision for unearned premiums represents the proportion of premiums written relaung to periods of insurance coverage
subsequent to the balance sheet date

Acquisition costs comprise the direct and indirect costs of obtaining and processing new insurance business Deferred acquisition
costs are amorused on the same basis as the related premiums earned The reinsurers share of deferred acquisition costs 1s included
within accruals and deferred income

The provivion for claims outstanding, whether reported or not, comprises the estimated cost of claims incurred but not settled at the
balance sheet date It includes related expenses and a deduction for the expected value of salvage and other recoveries The provision
1s determined using the best information available of claims settlement patterns, forecast inflation and settlement of claims The
provision for claims outstanding relating to long term permanent disability claims 15 also determined using recognised actuarial
methods

Provistons for claims outstanding, and related retnsurance recoveries, are discounted where there 1s a particularly long period from
incident to claims settlement and where there exists a suitable claims payment pattern from which to calculate the discount In
defining those claims with a long period from incident to claims settlement, those categories of claims where the average perod of
settlement 1s s1x years or more from the balance sheet date, has been used as a guide The discount rate used 1s based upon an
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Notes to the accounts (continued)
1. Accounting Policies (continued)

1 Techmcal provisions {(continued)

investment return expected to be earned by assets which are appropriate in magnttude and nature to cover the provisions for claims
outstanding being discounted, during the pertod necessary for the payment of such claims

Dnfferences between the estimated cost and subsequent settlement of claims are dealt with in the technical account for the year in
which the claims are settled or in which the provisions for claims outstanding are re-esimated

At each balance sheet date an assessment 1s made of whether the provisions for unearned premiums are adequate A separate
provision 1s made, based on information available at the balance shect date, for any estimated future underwnting losses relating to
unexpired risks The provision s calculated after taking into account future investment income that 1s expected to be earned from
the assets backing the provisions for unearned premiums (net of deferred acquisition costs) The unexpired risk provision 1s assessed
mn aggregate for business classes which, in the opimon of the directors, are managed together

Equalisation provisions are established in accordance with the Prudential Regulatory Authornity’s rules for insurers in the UK These
provisions, notwithstanding that they do not represent habihties at the balance sheet date as they are over and above the anticipated
utumate cost of outstanding claims, are required by Schedule 3 to be included within technical provistons in the balance sheet and
any change in the provisions during the year 1s required to be shown in the general business techmcal account

m. Reinsurance ceded

Premiums payable n respect of reinsurance ceded are recogmised in the period in which the reinsurance contract 1s entered into and
include esimates where the amounts are not determined a1 the balance sheet date Premiums are expensed over the period of the
remnsurance contract, calculated principally on a daily pro-rata basis

A remnsurance asset (reinsurers’ share of claims outstanding) 1s recogmsed to reflect the amount estimated to be recoverable under
the reinsurance contracts in respect of the technical provisions for outstanding claims reported under claims outstanding The amount
recoverable from reinsurers 1s intially valued on the same basis as the underlying provisions for outstanding ¢laims The amount
recoverable 1s reduced when there 15 an event ansing after the mitial recogmtion that provides objective evidence that the Company
may not recerve all amounts due under the reinsurance contract and the event has a reliably measurable impact on the expected
amount that will be recovered from the reinsurer

The rewnsurers’ share of each unexpired risk provision 1s recogmsed on the same as the unexpired provision described in b(i)

Annutties purchased by the Company to make payments under structured settlement arrangements are accounted for as retnsurance
ceded 1f the Company remains hable for the settlement in the event of default by the annwity provider Any gawn or loss arising on
the purchase of an annuity 1s recognised in the technical account at the date of purchase

¢) Translation of foreign currencies

Monetary assets and liabiliies denominated in foreign currencies are translated into sterling at rates ruling at the balance sheet date
Differences anising on retranslation are included within the profit and loss account Transactions denominated 1n foreign currencies
are translated nto sterling using the cumulanve average rate for the financial year The resulung exchange differences are included
within the profit and loss account Non monetary 1tems dre translated at the rate of exchange at the date of the transaction, and are not
subsequently retranslated

The results of overseas operations are translated at the average rates for the period and their balance sheets at the rates ruling at the
balance sheet date The resulting exchange differences are recogmsed in the statement of total recogmsed gains and losses

d) Investment return

[nvestment return ts recogmsed in the non-technical account and comprises all investment income, dividends from subsidiaries,
realised investment gamns and losses and movements 1n unrealised gains and losses, net of investment expenses Dividends on equity
investments are recognised on the date at which the investment s priced ‘ex dividend’ Interest income 1s recognised using the effective
interest rate method

Realised gains and losses on investments are calculated as the difference between nelt sales proceeds and purchase price
Movements in unrealised gains and loswes on investments represent the difference between their carrying value at the balance sheet

date and their purchase price or their carrying value at the last balance sheet date, together with the reversal of unrealised gains and
losses recognised 1n earher accounting pertods mn respect of investment disposals 1n the current period
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Notes to the accounts {continued)
1 Accounting Policies {continued)

e) Pension costs
Retirement Benefits

A defined contribution scheme 15 a pension scheme under which the Company pays fixed contributions 1nto a separate entity A
defined benefit scheme 1s a pension scheme that defines an amount of pension benefit that an employee will recerve on retirement
usually dependent on one or more factors such as age, years of service and level of salary

Contributions to defined contributron pension schemes are charged in the period o which the employment services qualifying for the
benefit are provided Differences between centributions payable in the year and contributions actually paid are shown as either
prepayments or accruals in the balance sheet

The amounts-charged (or credited where relevant) in the profit and loss account relating to post reurement benefits 1n respect of
defined benefit schemes are as follows

*  the current service cost,

* the past service costs for additional benefits granted in the current or earlier penods,
s the interest cost for the period,

¢ the impact of any curtatlments or settlements during the period, and

* the expected return on scheme assets (where relevant)

The current service cost in respect of defined benefit schemes comprises the present value of the additional benefits atributable o
employees’ services provided during the period

The present value of defined benefit obligations and the present values of additional benefits accruing during the period are calculated,
using the Projected Unit Method

Past service costs anse where additional benefits are granted The cost of providing additional benefits 1s recognised on a straight line
basis over the remaining period of service until such benefits vest The cost of providing additional benefits that vest on their
intreduction are recognised immediately

The calculation of the present value of accrued benefits incledes an actuanal assumpuion of future interest rates which 1s used to
discount the expected ultimate cost of providing the benefits The discount rate 15 determined at each balance sheet date by reference
to current market yields on high quality corporate bonds 1dentified to match the currency and estimated term of the obligations The
interest cost for the period 15 calculated by multiplying the discount rate determined at the start of the peniod by the defined benefit
obligations during the period

The change in the present value of the defined benefit obligation and the changes in the fair value of scheme assets resulung from any
curtallments and settlements of scheme labihities duning the period are recogmised in the profit and loss account Additonally, any
previously unrecognised past service costs related to these habihities are recognised in the gains or losses on settlement and curtaillment

The expected return on scheme assets for the period 15 calculated, based upon the average rate of return (including both income and
changes in fair value), net of scheme expenses, expected over the remaining hfe of the related obhgation on the actual assets held by
the scheme

Actuarial gains and losses arise from changes to actuanal assumptions when revaluing future benefits, and from actual expenence n
respect of scheme habilities and investment performance of scheme assets bemng different from previous assumptions Actuanal gains
and losses are recogmised 1n the statement of total recognived gains and losses

The value recognised 1n the balance sheet for each individual post retirement scheme ts calculated as follows

* the fair value at the balance sheet date of the scheme assets out of which the obligations are to be settled directly,
* munus the present value of defined benefit obligation of the scheme at the balance sheet date,

*  minus any past service cost not yet recognised, and

*  plus or munus the deferred tax Liabibty or asset respectively relating to the defined benefit asset or hability
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Notes to the accounts (continued)
1 Accounting Policies (continued)

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment 1s terminated before the normal retirement date, or whenever an employee accepts
voluntary redundancy 1n exchange for these benefits The Company recogmises termunation benefits when 1t 1s demonstrably
committed to either terminating the employment of current employees according 1o a detailed formal plan without possibihty of
withdrawal, or providing termination benefits as a result of an offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy Benefits falling due
more than twelve months after the balance sheet date are discounted to present value

f) Share based payment

The value of the employee share options and other equity settled share based payments 15 calculated at fair value at the grant date
using appropriate and recognised option pricing models

Vesting conditions, other than those based upon market conditions, are not taken into account when esumating the fair value of such
awards but are taken into account by adjusting the number of equity mstruments included 1n the ultmate measurement of the
transaction amount The value of the awards 1s recogmsed as an expense on a systematic basis over the period duning which the
employment services are provided

g) Taxation

Current tax, based on profits and income for the year, inctuding UK corporation tax and foreign tax, 1s provided at amounts expected
to be paid (or recovered) using the tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date

Deferred tax 1s recognised 1n respect of all nming differences that have oniginated but not reversed at the balance sheet date where
transactions or events that result 1n an obligation to pay more tax in the future or a right to pay less tax 1n the future have occurred at
the balance sheet date Timung differences are differences between the Company’s taxable profits and its results as stated 1n the
financial statements that anse from the inclusion of gains and losses 1n tax assessments 1n perntods different from those 1n which they
are recognised n the financial statements

A net deferred 1ax asset 15 regarded as recoverable and therefore recognised only to the extent that, on the basis of all available
evidence 1t can be regarded as more likely than not that there will be suitable taxable profits from which the future reversal of the
underlying timing differences can be deducted A deferred tax asset 1s recogmsed for relief for trading losses or other losses only to
the extent that the directors anticipate that suitable profits will absorb such losses 1n the future

Deferred tax 1s not recognised when fixed assets are revalued unless by the balance sheet date there 1s a binding agreement to sell the
revalued assets and the gain or loss expected to arise on sale has been recogmsed in the financial statements Neither 1s deferred tax
recogmsed when fixed assets are sold and 1t 15 more likely than not that the taxable gain will be rolled over, being charged to tax only
if and when the replacement assets are sold

Deferred tax 15 recognised 1n respect of the retained earnings of overseas subsidiaries and associates only 1o the extent that, at the
balance sheet date, dividends have been accrued as receivable or a binding agreement to distribute past earnings wn future has been
entered into by the subsidiary or associate

Deferred tax 15 measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply 1n the periods in which the timing differences are expected to
reverse, based on tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date Deferred tax 1y
measured on & non-discounted basis

h) Operating leases

Payments made under operating leases are charged on a straight-line basts over the term of the lease

1) Goodwill and other intangible assets

Goodwill, being the difference between the cost of an umncorporated business acquisition and the Company's 1aterest 1n the net fair
value of the identifiable assets and liabiliies acquired, 1s 1mitially capitalised 1n the balance sheet at cost and 15 subsequently recognised
dt cost less accumulated amortisation and any tmpairment losses  The cost of the acquisition 1s the amount of cash paid and the fair

value of other purchase consideration given together with directly related expenses Goodwill is regarded as having a limited useful
life that does not exceed twenty five years and 1s amortised on a straight-line basis over its useful hfe
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Notes to the accounts (continued)
L. Accounting Policies {continued)

1)  Goodwill and other intangible assets (continued)

Goodwill 1s subject to an impairment review at the end of the first full financial year following the imitial recogmition of the goodwill
and, 1n other periods, 1f events or changes m circumstances indicate that its carrying value may not be recoverable in full Where the
review reveals that the carrying amount s more than the recoverable amount, an impairment 1s recognised

Other intangible assets compnise renewal rights These assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation  Amortisation on
renewal rights 1s calculated using the straight line method to allocate the cost over the estimated useful life, which 1s normally estimated
to be between 3 and 12 years

)) Investment property

Investment properties are shown at market value and are valued annually by independent professtonally quahified valuers at open
market value Unrealised gains and losses are recognised 1n the non-technical account

The Compantes Act requires propertics to be depreciated over their expected useful economuic hives The directors consider that
depreciation of investment properties would not give a true and fair view In accordance with Statement of Standard Accounting
Pracuce 19 ‘Accounting for Investment Properties’. no depreciation 1s provided on these properties on the basis that depreciation 1s
already reflected 1n the annual valuauons The amounts attnibuted 1o this factor by the vaiuers cannot reasonably be separately
identified or quantified

It 1s the Company’s practice to maintain properties occupied by the Company in a continual state of sound repair Accordingly the
directors consider that the economic hives of these properiies and their residual values, based on prices prevailling at the time of
acqusitron or subsequent valuation, are such that any deprectation s insigmficant and s thus not provided

k) Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are valued at directors valuation that equates to net asset value Permanent reductions 1n the recoverable
amount of investments 1n subsidiaries are taken to the profit and loss account Other differences between net asset values and book
values of tnvestments in subsidianes are taken to the Statement of Total Recognised Gains and Losses Dividends from subsidiaries
are accounted for as income tn the period in which the Company becomes entitled to receive the dividend

1) Interests in associates

Assoclates are entities over which the Company has sigmficant influence but nat control, generally accompanying a shareholding of
between 20% and 50% of the vouing rights Investments 1n associates are accounted as investments (n participating interests and are
carried 1n the balance sheet at a drrectors’ valuation (based upon the Company's share of the net current assets of the associate)

Changes 1n the valuation of associates are recognised 1n the statement of total recogmsed gains and losses Dividends from associates
are accounted for as income 1n the period in which the Company becomes entitled to recerve the dividend

m) Financial assets

A financial asset 1s 1mtually recognised, on the date the Company commuts to purchase the asset, at fair value plus transaction costs
that are directly attributable to 1ts acquisition A financial asset 15 derecogmsed when the nights to receive cashflows from the
mvestment have expired or have been transferred and the Company has also transferred substantially the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset

Where the following conditions are satisfied, financial assets (other than derivauves and oniginated loans and receivables) are
designated upon inual recognnion as at fair value through profit or loss The conditions are that the performance of the assets ts
evaluated on 4 total return basis (including the changes in fair values) in accordance with a documented nvestment strategy and
information 15 provided internally to the Company's key directors on this basis

On subsequent measurement, investments are measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in the non-techmcal
account Origmated loans and recervables are measured at amortised cost
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1. Accounting Policies (continued)

n) Estimation of the fair value of financial assets and habthties other than investments 1n subsidiaries

The methods and assumptions used by the Company 10 estimating the fair value of financial assets and habihties are

e for fixed matunty secunties, fair values are generally based upon quoted market prices Where market prices are not readily
available, fair values are estimated using either values obtained from quoted market prices of comparable securities or estimated
by discounting expected future cash flows using a current market rate apphcable to the yield credit quality and maturity of the
mvestment,

* for equity secunties fair values are based upon quoted markel prices,

* f the market for a financial asset 1s not active, the Company establishes fair value by using vatuation techmgues These include
the use of recent arm’s length transactions, reference to other instruments that are substantially the same, discounted cash flow
analysis and option pricing models,

*  for mortgage loans on real estate and collateral loans, fair values are estimated using discounted cash flow calculations based
upon prevailing market rates,

. for cash short- term mvestments, commercial paper, other assets, habilities and accruals carrying amounts approximate to fair
value,

*  for notes, bonds and loans payable fair values are determined by reference to quoted market prices or estimated using discounted
cash flow calculatons based upon prevailing market rates Loan capital 1s carmied at amortised cost and when this 1s different
from fair value this 1s shown tn the relevant note  Fair value 1n this case 1s based on discounted future cash flows For borrowings
that carry 4 vanable rate of interest (other than loan capital), carrying values approximate to fair values, and

*  for derivatives fair values are generally based upon quoted market prices

For disclosure purposes, fair value measurements are classitied as Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which fair value 1s
observable

. Level t fair value measurements are those derived from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for 1dentical assets or
habilities

. Level 2 fair value measurements are those dertved from inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability, erther directly (1t e as prices) orindirectly (1 e denived from prices)

. Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived from valuation techniques that include sigmficant inputs for the asset or
habulity that are not based on observable market data (uncbservable inputs)

o) Derivatives

Denivatives are recogmsed 1n the balance sheet on a trade date basis and are carried at fair value Derivatives are carried as assets
when fair value 1s positive and as hab:hties when fair value 1s negative  All gains and losses arising are 1aken to the non-technical
account The Company does not hold or 1ssue denvauve financial instruments for speculative purposes

p) Tangible assets

Tangible assets comprise equipment and computer software These assets are stated 1n the balance sheet at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses Deprecration 1s calculated to write off the cost less the estimated residual value of the tangible
fixed assets on a straight line basis over their expected vseful lives as follows equipment 3 to 10 years and computer software 310 §
years

q) Subordinated loans

Subordinated loans are classified according to their contractual terms

Subordinated loans are classified as a separate class of equity capital when the terms of the loan contain no obligation on the Company
to deliver cash or another financial asset to another entity or to exchange financial assets or financial habiliies with another entity
under cenditions that are potentially unfavourable to the Company and contain no provision to settle the loan through the 1ssue of
equity

instruments of the Company Interest paid on such subordinated loans 15 not recognised 1n the profit and loss account and 1s deducted
from the profit and loss reserve on a accruals basts

Subordinated loans are classified as habilities when the conditions above are not met Interest costs on such subordinated loans are
calculated using the effective interest method and are recogmsed in the non-technical account
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2. Estimation Techniques, Risks, Uncertainties and Contingencies

Introduction

One of the purposes of insurance 1s to enable policyholders to protect themselves against uncertain future events Insurance companies
accept the transfer of uncertainty from policyholders and seek to add value through the aggregation and management of these risks

The uncertainty tnherent 1n nsurance 1s (nevitably reflected 1n the financial statements of nsurance companes
The vwncertainty n the financial statements principally anses in respect of the claims outstanding of the company

The claims outstanding of an msurance company nclude the provision for unearned premiums and unexpired nisks and the provision
for outstanding claims Unearned premiums and unexpired nsks represent the amount of income set aside by the company to cover
the cost of claims that may anse during the unexpired peried of risk of 1nsurance polictes 1n force at the end of the reporting penod
Outstanding claims represent the company’s estimate of the cost of settlement of claims that have occurred by the end of the reporting
penod but have not yet been finally settled

In addition to the inherent uncertamnty of having to make provision for future events, there 1s also considerable uncertainty as regards
the eventual outcome of the claims that have occurred by the end of the reporting period but remain unsettled This includes claims
that may have occurred but have not yet been notfied to the company and those that are not yet apparent to the insured

As a consequence of this uncertainty, the msurance company needs to apply sophisticated estimation techniques to determine the
Appropriate provisions

Estimation techniques

Claims and unexpired risks provisions are determined based upon previous claims experience knowledge of events and the terms and
conditions of the relevant policies and on interpretation of circumstances  Particularly relevant 1s experience with similar cases and
histoncal claims payment trends The approach also mcludes the consideration of the development of loss payment trends, the
potennial longer term sigmficance of large events, the levels of unpaid claims, legislative changes, judicial decisions and economic
pohtical and regulatory conditions

Where possible, the Company adopts multple techmques to estimate the required level of provisions This assists 1n giving greater
understanding of the trends inherent 1n the data being projected The Company's estuimates of losses and loss expenses are reached
after a review of several commonly accepted actuanal projection methodologies and a number of different bases to determing these
provisions These include methods based upon the following

*  the development of previously settled claims, where payments to date are extrapolated for each prior year,

*  esumates based upon a projection of claims numbers and average cost,

* notfied claims development, where notified claims to date for each year are extrapolated based upon observed development of
earlier years, and

*  expected loss ratios

In addition, the Company uses other methods such as the Bornhuetter-Ferguson method, which combines features of the above
methods The Company also uses bespoke methods for specialist classes of business In selecting 1ts best estimate, the Company
considers the appropriateness of the methods and bases to the individual eircumstances of the provision class and underwniting year
The process 15 designed to select the most appropriate best estimate

Large claims impacting each relevant business class are generally assessed separately, being measured either 4t the face value of the
loss adjusters” estimates or projected separately in order to allow for the future development of large claims

Provisions are calculated gross of any reinsurance recoveries A separate estimate 1s made of the amounts that will be recoverable
from reinsurers based upon the gross provisions and having due regard to collectability

The claims provisions are subject to close scruany both within the Company’s business units and at Group In addition, for major
classes where the risks and uncertainties inherent 1n the provisions are greatest, regular and ad hoc detailed reviews are undertaken by
advisers who are able to draw upon their specialist expertisc and a broader knowledge of current industry trends 1n

claims development As an example the Company's exposure to asbestos related losses 1s examined on this basis  The results of
these reviews are considered when establishing the appropriate levels of provisions for outstanding claims and unexpired penods of
nsk

It should be emphasised that the estumation techniques for the determinauon of clams outstanding involve obtaining corroborative
evidence from as wide a range of sources as possible and combining these to form the overall estimate
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Estimation techmgques (continued)

The pension assets and pension and post retirement hiabihties are calculated 1n accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 17 (FRS
17) The assets, habilities and profit & loss account charge, calculated 1n accordance with FRS 7, are sensitive to the assumptions
made from time to time, including nflaton, interest rate, investment return and mortahity FRS 17 compares, at a given date, the
current market value of a pension fund’s assets with its long term Labihities, which are calculated using a discount rate n line with
yields on "AA’ rated bonds of suitable duration and currency As such the financial posinon of a pension fund on thus basis 1s highly
sensitive to changes 1n bond rates and wall also be mmpacted by changes in equity markets

Uncertainties and contingencies
The uncertainty ansing under tnsurance contracts may be characterised under a number of specific headings, such as

* uncertainty as to whether an event has occurred which would give nise to a policyholder suffering an (nsured loss,
*  uncertainty as to the extent of policy coverage and Limts applicable,

* uncertainty as to the amount of insured loss suffered by a policyholder as a result of the event occurning, and

* uncertainty over the iming of a settlement to a policyholder for a loss suffered .

The degree of uncertainty will vary by policy class according to the charactenstics of the insured risks and the cost of a claim will be
determined by the actual loss suffered by the policyholder

There may be sigmificant reporting lags between the occurrence of the msured event and the time 1t 18 actually reported to the Company
Following the 1dentification and notification of an insured loss, there may still be uncertainty as to the magnitude and uming of the
settlement of the claim  There are many factors that will determine the level of uncertainty such as inflation, inconsistent judicial
interpretations and court judgments that broaden policy coverage beyond the intent of the original insurance, legislative changes and
claims handling procedures

The establishment of insurance contract habilittes 1s an inherently uncertain process and, as a consequence of this uncertainty the
eventual cost of settlement of outstanding claims and unexpired nisks can vary substantially from the imtial esumates, parucularly for
the Company’s long tail lines of business The Company seeks to provide appropniate levels of claims provision and provision for
unexpired nisks taking the known facts and experience mto account

The Company has exposures 1o risks in each class of business within each operating segment that may develop and that could have a
material impact upon the Company’s financial posiion  The geographic and insurance risk diversity within the Company's portfolio
of1ssued insurance policies mean it 1s not possible to predict whether material development will occur and, tf it does occur, the location
and the timing of such an occurrence The esimation of insurance contract habilities involves the use of judgments and assumptions
that are specific 10 the insurance nsks within each terntory and the particular type of insurance rnisk covered The diversity of the
surance risks results 1n 1t not being possible to 1dentify 1ndividual judgments and assumptions that are more hikely than others to
have a material impact on the future development of the insurance contract habihities

The sections below 1dentify a number of specific nsks relating to asbestos and environmental claims There may be ather classes of
nisk which could develop in the future and that could have a matenal impact on the Company’s financial position

The Company evaluates the concentration of exposures to individual and cumulative msurance risk and establishes its reinsurance
policy to manage such exposure to levels acceptable to the Company

Asbestos and environmental claims

The estimation of the provisions for the ultimate cost of clmms for asbestos and environmental pollution 1s subject to 2 range of
uncertainties that 1 generally greater than those encountered for other classes of insurance busmess  As a result 1t 15 not possible to
determine the future development of asbestos and environmental claims with the same degree of reliability as with other types of
claims, parucularly 1n periods when theories of law are in flux  Consequently, tradittonal techniques for estmating claims provisions
cannot wholly be relied upon and the Company employs specialised techniques to determine provisions using the extensive knowledge
of both internal asbestos and environmental pollution experts and external legal and professional advisors
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Asbestos and environmental claims (continued)
Factors contributing to this lgher degree of uncertainty include

¢ the long delay in reporting claims from the date of exposure (for example, cases of mesothelloma can have a {atent period of up
to 40 years) This makes estimating the ultimate number of claims the Company will receive particularly difficult,

* 1ssues of allocation of responsibility among potennally responsible parties and 1nsurers,

* emerging court decisions and the possibihity of retrospective legistative changes increasing or decreasing insurer liabihty,

the tendency for social trends and factors to influence court awards,

developments pertaiming to the Company’s ability to recover remsurance for claims of this nature, and

for US habihties from the Company’s London market business, developments n the tactics of US plamnaff lawyers and court

decisions and awards

LI

Potential change 1n discount rate for Jump sum damages awards

Legislative changes may affect the Company’s liabihity 1n respect of unsettled claims in the use of predetermined factors used by
courts to calculate compensation claims  For example, in the UK, standard formulae are used as an actuarial measure by the courts to
assess lump sum damages awards for future losses (typically loss of earnings ansing from personal injunes and fatal accudents) The
cahbration of these standard formulae can be updated by the UK Government and the Lord Chancellor may review the methodology
to be applied in determiming the discount rate to calculate the appropriate seitlements, or the discount rate itself, in due course A
reduction 1n the prescnibed discount rate would ncrease the value of future claims settlements

Acquisitions and disposals

The Company makes acquisitions and disposals of businesses as part of its normal operations  All acquisitions are made after due
diligence, which will include, amongst other matters, assessment of the adequacy of claims reserves, assessment of the recoverability
of remsurance balances, inquirtes with regard to outstanding liigation and inquiries of local regulators and taxation authorities
Consideration 1s also given to potential costs, nsks and 1ssues 1n relation to the integration of any proposed acquisitions with existing
RSA operations  The Company will seek to recerve the benefit of appropnate coniractual representations and warranties 1n connection
with any acquisition and, where necessary, additional indemmfications n relation to specific risks although there can be no guarantee
that these processes and any such protection will be adequate 1n all circumstances The Company may also provide relevant
representations, warranties and indemnities to counterparties on any disposal

These clauses are customary 1 such contracts and may from time to tume lead to the Company receiving claims from counterparties
Contracts with third parties

The Company enters into outsourcing contracts and distribution arrangements with third parties 1n the normal course of 1ts business
and 15 reliant upon those third parties being willing and able to perform thetr obligations 1n accordance with the terms and conditions
of the contracts

Litigation, disputes and mvestigations

The Company, in common with the insurance industry in general, 15 subject to litigation, mediation and arbitration, and regulatory,
governmental and other sectoral inquinies and investigations tn the normal course of its business Based on current information the
directors do not believe that any current mediation, arbitration, regulatory, governmental or sectoral inquiries and vestigations and
pending or threatened lihgation or dispute will have a matenal adverse effect on the Company’s financial position, although there can

be no assurance that losses or financial penalties resulting from any current mediation, arbitration, regulatory, governmental or sectoral
inquines and mvestigations and pending or threatened lingation or dispute will not materially affect the Company's financial position
or cash flows for any period

Reinsurance

The Company 1s exposed to disputes on, and defects in, contracts with its reinsurers and the possibility of default by
s remsurers The Company 15 also exposed to the credit nisk assumed 1n fronting arrangements and to potential reinsurance capacity
constraints  In selecting the rewnsurers with whom the Company conducts business, 1ts strategy 1s to seek reinsurers with the
appropnate combination of financial strength, price and capacity The Group Corporate Centre publishes internally a hst of authorised
reinsurers who pass the Group’s selection process and which its operations may use for new transactions
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Reimnsurance (continued)

The Company momtors the financial sirength of 1ts remsurers, including those to whom risks are no longer ceded  Aliowance 15 made
1n the financial position for non recoverablity due to reinsurer default by providing, in line with Group standards having regard to
compantes on the Group’s “Watch List” The ‘Watch List’ 1s the hist of compames whom the Group’s directors believe will not be
able to pay amounts due 1n full

Investment nisk

The Company 15 exposed to market nsk and credit nisk on 1ts invested assets Market risk ncludes the nisk of potential losses from
adverse movements in market rates and prices including interest rates, equity prices, property prices and foretgn exchange rates The
Company’s exposure e market risks 1s controlled by the setting of investment limits in line with the Group’s nsk appetite From time
to tume the Company 21so makes use of denivative financial instruments to reduce exposure to adverse fluctuations in foreign exchange
rates and equity markets The Company has strict controls over the use of denvative instruments

Credst nsk includes the non performance of contractual payment obligations on invested assets and adverse changes in the credut
worthiness of invested assets including exposures to 1ssuers or counterparties for bonds, equities, deposits and derivatives Limits are
set at both a portfolio and counterparty level based on hikehihood of default to manage the Group’s overall credit profile and spectfic
concentrations within risk appetite The Company’s insurance investment portfohos are concentrated 1n histed secuniies with very
low levels of exposure to assets without quoted market prices  The Company uses model based analysis to venfy asset values when
market values are not readily available

Rating environment

The ability of the Company to write certain types of insurance business 1s dependent on the maintenance of the appropriate credit
ratings from the rating agencics The RSA Insurance Group has the objective of maintaimning single ‘A’ ratings At the present nme
the raungs are ‘A-' (Developing CreditWatch outlook) from S&P and *A2’ by Moody’s A worsening in the ratings, below objective,
could have an adverse impact on the ability of the Company to write certain types of general insurance business

In assessing credit nsk 1n relation to remnsurance and investments, the RSA Insurance Group takes into account a variety of factors,
including credit rating If any such rating changes, or 15 otherwise reassessed this has potential implications for the related exposures

Foreign exchange risk

The Company publishes financial statements 1n Pounds Sterling  Therefore, fluctuanons in exchange rates used to translate other
currencies, particularly other European currencies, Hong Kong dollar, Singapore dollar and the Canadian dollar, into Pounds Sterling
will impact the reported financial position, results of operations from penod to penod These fluctuations 1n exchange rates will also
impact the Pound Sterling value of and the return on the Company’s investments

Income and expenses for each profit & loss account item are translated at average exchange rates  Assets and liabihues, as reported
in the balance sheet, are translated at closing exchange rates at the end of the reporting period

Regulatery environment

The legal, regulatory and accounting environment 1s subject to sigmficant change in many of the jurisdictions 1n which the Company
operates, including developments in response to changes 1n the economic and political environment  The Company continugs to
moniter the developments and react accordingly

Solvency 11, the new solvency framework being introduced by the EU with effect from 1 January 2016 1s intended 1o achieve greater
harmomsation of approach across EU member states to assessing capital resources and requirements Although there suil remains
some uncertainty as to the final rules, the Company 1s actively involved n ensuning 1t meets the requirements through detatled
implementation plans

The Company will be seeking regulatory approval to use an internal model to calculate the Solvency Capital Requirement (SCR)
There 15 a nisk that 1ts regulator may elect not to give approval for the whole, or parts of, the model This may mean that the
Company would need to use elements of the standard formula for calculating the SCR, which may be materially different to the
SCR calculated using the internal model The Company maintains close and regular dialogue with 1ts regulators throughout the
Journey to internal model approval and the Directors are confident that the Company will continue to meet all future regulatory
capital requirements
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Introduction

RS A Insurance Group plc (the Group), of which the Company 1s an important part, 1s managed along divisional lines The Company
transacts the majornty of the Group's UK business The directors of the Company have considered whether the Group approach to
strategy, risk management, performance review and custody of assets fully meets the needs of the Company as a separate regulated
entity They have concluded that it does The following discussion sets out the approach of the Group, and hence of the Company, to
nsk management

Risk Management

As an msurance company, the Company 15 1n the business of actively seeking nisk with a view to adding value by managing 1t This
note summarises the key risks 1o the Group, and hence the Company, and the steps taken to manage them

The Group’s Board of Directors (the ‘Board’) defines the risk appette of the organisation The Group employs a comprehensive Risk
Management System that includes a full range of risk pohicies, procedures, measurement reporting and momtoring techniques and a
series of stress tests and scenano analyses to ensure that the nisk exposures that arise from operating the Company’s business are
managed approprialely

For the purpose of managing its risk the Group classtfies risks into the following categories

* Insurance

¢  (Credut
Market
*  Ligmdity

¢ QOperational
Insurance risk
Underwriting and claims risk

The Company manages these nsks through its underwriting strategy adequate remnsurance arrangements and proactive claims
handling The underwrniung strategy aims to ensure that the underwritten risks are well diversified in terms of type and amount of nsk,
industry and geography

Pricing for the Company’s products 1s generally based upon historical claims frequencies and claims sevenity averages, adjusted for
inflation and modelled catastrophes trended forward to recognise anticipated changes in claims patterns  While claims remain the
Company’s principal cost, the Company also makes allowance n the pricing procedures for acquisition expenses, administration
expenses, investment income, the cost of reinsurance and for a profit loading that adequately covers the cost of the capital

Underwriting limits are 10 place to enforce appropnate risk selection cniteria The Company generally has the nght not to renew
individual policies, it can impose deductibles and 1t has the night to reject the payment of a fraudulent claam In the UK and certain
other territonies, legislauon imposes a minimum amount for which employers can be hable for claims for compensation from
employees injured at work These habilities are usually insured under an employers’ hability (or simitlar) insurance policy All policies
1ssued by the Company comply with mintmum statutory requirements

All of the Company’s underwniters have specific licences that set clear parameters for the business they can underwnite based on the
expenience of the individual underwnter Additionally the Group has a centrally managed forum looking at Group underwriting
1ssues, reviewing and agreeing underwniting direction and setting policy and directives where appropnate  The Group has a quarterly
portfolic management process across all its business units which provides a consistent assessment of cach portfolio performance
aganst a set of key performance ndicators Under the portfolio management system. key nsk indicators are tracked to monitor
emerging trends, opportunities and nisks and, on an annual basis, a review forum of business and underwriting leaders undertake a
detailed review of each portfolio utilising data from the quarterly reviews

The Company has developed enhanced methods of recording exposures and concentrations of nsk  This means that there 15 greater

control of exposures 1n high risk areas and enables a prompt response to ¢laums from policyholders should there be a catastrophic
event such as an earthquake
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Underwniting and claims risk (continued)

Reinsurance arrangements in place nclude proportional, excess of loss, stop loss and catastrophe coverage The effect of such
reinsurance arrangements is that the Company should not suffer total net insurance losses beyond the Company’s risk appetite wn any
one year

Reserve risk

The Company establishes loss reserves to account for the anticipated ulnmate costs of all lesses and related loss adjustment expenses
(LAE) on losses that have already occurred The Company establishes reserves for reported losses and LAE, as well as for imncurred
but not yet reported (IBNR) losses and unallocated loss adjustment expenses (ULAE) Loss reserve estimates are based on known
facts and on interpretation of circumstances including the Company’s experience with similar cases and historical claims payment
trends The Company also considers the development of loss payment trends, levels of unpatd claims, judicial decisions and economic
conditions

The Group has a Group Reserving Commuttee chaired by the Group Chief Financial Officer and consisting of the Group Cheef Execuuve,
Group Underwriting Director Group Chief Actuary and Group Chief Risk Officer A similar commattee has been established 1n each of the
Group’s mayor operating segments The Group Reserving Committee monitors the decisions and judgements made by the business units as
to the level of reserves to be held and recommends to the Group Chief Executive and Group Chief Financial Officer who recommend to
the Group Board and the Group Audit Commuttee for the final decision on the level of reserves to be included within the consolidated
financial statements In forming s coliective judgement, the Commuttee considers the following information

¢ An actuanial indication of ultumate losses together with an assessment of nisks and possible favourable or adverse
developments that may not have been fully reflected 1n calculating these indications At the end of 2014 these nisks and
developments include the possibility of future legislative change having retrospective effect on open claims, changes in
claims settlement procedures potentially leading to future claims payment patterns differing from historical experience, the
possibility of new types of claim, such as disease claims, emerging from business written several years ago, general
uncertainty in the claims environment, the emergence of latent exposures such as asbestos, the outcome of htigation on
claims received and failure to recover reinsurance and unanticipated changes in claims inflation,

e The views of internal peer reviewers of the reserves and of other parties including actuanes, legal counsel, nsk directors,
underwriters and claims managers and

*  How previous actuanal indications have developed

Use of reinsurance

The Company 1s exposed to both multiple insured losses and losses ansing out of a single occurrence. for example a naturai peril event such
as a humcane, flood or earthquake

All of the Group’s operations are required to purchase reinsurance within agreed local reinsurance appetite parameters The Group Corporate
Centre authorises the operations’ proposed treaty purchases to check that they at least meet the Group’s appetite, for example the ‘1 1n 200
year' standard for catastrophe nsk Group Corporate Centre also checks o see that total Group exposures are within the imits set out above
and also are consistent with the required risk based capatal In addition, local facultative arrangements may be purchased where deemed
appropriate

The Company remains pnmanly hable as the direct insurer on all nisks reinsured, although the reinsurer1s hable to the Company to the extent
of the insurance nsk ceded

Credit nsk

Credit risk 1s the nisk of loss of value of the financial assets due to counterparties falling to meet all or part of thewr obliganons The
Board Risk Commuttee (BRC) 1s responsible for ensuring that the Board approved Group credit nisk appetite 1s not exceeded This 15
done through the setting and imposition of Group polictes, procedures and hunits  In defining 1ts appetite for credit risk the Group
looks at exposures at both an aggregate and business umt level distinguishing between credit risks incurred as a result of offsetting
nsurance nisks or operating 1n the insurance market (e g remnsurance credit risks and risks to receiving premwums due from
policyholders and intermediaries) and crednt risks incurred for the purposes of generating a return (e g 1nvested assets credit risk)
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Credit risk (continued)

Limits are set at both a portfolio and counterparty level based on hkelhood of default, derived from the rating of the counterparty, to
ensure that the Group’s overall credit profile and specific concentrations are managed and controlled within risk appetite  Financial
assets are graded according to company standards AAA 1s the highest possible raing Investment grade financial assets are classified
within the range of AAA to BBB ratings For invested assets, restrichions are placed on each of the Group’s investment managers as
to the level of exposure to various rating categones including unrated securities

The following table provides information regarding the aggregated credit nsk exposure for financial assets of the Company as at 31
December 2014

Credit rating relating to financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired Total of

financial

assels that

are netther

past due nor

AAA AA A BBB <BBB  Not rated impaired

£m £m £m fm £m £m £m

Debt secunities 1,658 620 1,904 417 35 1 4,635

Other financial assets - - - - - 7 7

Short term mvestments - 32 86 - - - 118

Reinsurance assets 121 206 782 112 49 51 1,321

Insurance and remnsurance debtors (1) 51 12 1,168 95 98 683 2,107

Dernvative assets 6 7 37 - - - 50

Cash at bank and 1n hand 1 30 85 11 3 1 131
As at 31 December 2013

Credit rating relating to financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired Toial of

. financial

assets that

are neither

past due nor

AAA AA A BBB <BBB  Not rated impaired

£m fm £ £m £fm £m £m

Debt secunties 1,185 650 1,113 283 35 15 3,281

Other financial assets l - 1 - - 9 11

Short term investments - I 49 2 - 1 63

Retnsurance assels 106 190 459 139 23 106 1,023

Insurance and reinsurance debtors (1) 122 13 1,077 122 104 721 2,159

Denivative assets - 20 38 - - - 58

Cash at bank and 1n hand 25 125 43 2 3 5 203

Notes

| The msurance and reinsurance debtors classified as not rated compnse personal policyholders and small corporate customers that do not have individual credut ratings
The overall nsk to the Company 15 deemed (o be low as the cover could be cancelled if payments were not received on a bmely basis

With the exception of AAA rated Government secunties, the largest aggregate credit exposure does not exceed 2% of the Company’s
total financial assets

The Company 1s exposed to credit and concentrations of risk with individual remnsurers due to the nature of the reinsurance market
and the restricted range of rewnsurers that have acceptable credit ratings The reinsurance strategy 15 to purchase reinsurance 1n the
most effective manner from reinsurers who meet the Group's secunty standards Reinsurance counterparties are subject to a rigorous
internal assessment process on an ongoing basis to ensure that their creditworthiness continues to be satisfactory and the potennial
impact from reinsurer default 1s measured regularly and managed accordingly The Group Reinsurance Credit Committee oversees
the management of these risks Group standards are set such that reinsurers that have a financial strength raung of less than *A-" with
Standard & Poor’s or a comparable rating, are removed from the Group’s authorised list of approved remnsurers unless the Group's
internal review discovers exceptronal circumstances in favour of the reinsurer Collateral 15 taken to mutigate exposures, where
appropriate, 1o acceptable levels or the size or credit quahity of the exposure
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Credit risk (continued)

The Company regularly monitors 11s aggregate exposures by remsurer group against predetermuned reinsurer group limits, in
accordance with the methodology agreed by the BRC  The Company’s largest reinsurance exposures to active reinsurance groups are
HDI-Gerling Munich Re and Swiss Re At 31 December 2014 the reinsurance asset recoverable from these groups does not exceed
4% of the Company’s total financial assets As of 31 December 2014, the largest pool (by premium volume) 1s Pool Re operated by
the UK Government to provide terrorism cover

There are no matenal financial assets that would have been past due or impaired had the terms not been renegotiated

The following table provides information regarding the carrying value of financial assets that have been impaired and the ageing of
financial assets that are past due but not impaired as at 31 December 2014

Neither past  Financial assets that are past due but not Financial Carrying Impairment

due nor 1mparred assets  valuein losses

impaired 0-3 3-6 6-12  Greater that have the charged to

than 12 been  balance the P&L

maonths months months  months impaired sheet

£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m

Debt securities 4,635 - - - - - 4,635 -
Other financial assets 7 - - - - - 7 -
Short term investiments 118 - - - - - 118 -
Reinsurance assets 1,321 - - - - 1 1,322 -

Insurance and reinsurance debtors 2,107 20 6 3 6 1 2,143 12
Denvative assets 50 - - - - - 50 -
Cash at bank and m hand 131 - - - - - 131 -

As at 31 December 2013
Neither past Financial assets that are past due but not impaired  Financial - Carrying  Impairment

due 0-3 3-6 6-12  Greater assets value n losses
nor impaired than 12 that have the charged to
months months months  months been balance the P&L
impaired sheet
£m £m £m £m £m fm fm £m
Debt secunties 3,281 - - - - - 3,281 -
Other financial assets 11 - - - - - 11 -
Short term 1nvestments 63 - - - - - 63 -
Reinsurance assets 1,023 - - - - | 1,024 H
Insurance and reinsurance debtors 2,159 17 7 4 2 2 2,191 1
Denvative assets 58 - - - - 58 -
Cash at bank and in hand 203 - - - - - 203 -

Local operations are responsible for assessing and monitoring the creditworthiness of their counterparties (e g brokers and
policyholders) Local credit commuttees are responstble for ensuning these exposures are withan the risk appetite of the local aperations
Exposure momtortng and reporting 1s embedded throughout the organisation with aggregate credit positions reported and monutored
4t Group level

The Company’s investments comprise a broad range of financial investments 1ssued principally 1n the UK

At 31 December 2014, the Company had pledged £769m (2013 £871m) of financial assels as collateral for habihines or contingent
labthties and had accepted £185m (20713 £107m) n collateral The nature of the assets pledged as collateral comprises government
securities of £711m (2013 £80Im}, cash and cash equivalents of £26m (2013 £37m) and debt secunties £32m (2013 £33m) The
terms and conditions of the collateral pledged are market standard 1n relaiton to letter of credit facilites

The Company is permutted to sell or repledge collateral held in the event of default by the owner, the fair value of which has been

noted above at £185m  The terms and conditions of the collateral held are market standard The assets held as collateral are readily
convertible 1nto cash
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Credit nsk (continued)

At 31 December 2014, the Company had entered mito short term sale and repurchase agreements for UK government securities The
Company continues to recognise the debt securities on the balance sheet as the Company remains exposed to the risks and rewards of
ownership The carrymng value of these debt securities recogmised on the balance sheet 1s £300m (20/3 £300m) and the carrying value
of the associated habilities 1 £299m (2073 £300m)

The Company enters nto denvattve transactions under International Swaps and Denvatives Association (ISDA) master netting
arrangements In general, under such agreements the amounts owned by each counterparty on a single day in respect of all transactions
outstanding 1n the same currency are aggregated into a single net amount that 1s payable by one counterparty to the other In certain
circumstances, such as a credit default, all outstanding transactions under the agreement are terminated, the termination value 15 assessed and
only a single net amount 15 payable in settlement of all transactions

The ISDA agreements do not meet the cntena for offseting 1n the balance sheet This 1s because the Company does not have any currently
legally enforceable nght to offset recognised amounts, because the nght to offset 1s enforceable only on the occurrence of future events

Market risk

The Group 1s exposed to the risk of potential losses from adverse movements in market prices including those of interest rates, equities,
property exchange rates and denvauves

Exposures are controlled by the setting of investment limits and managing asset-hability matching 1n hne with the Group’s risk
dappetite

The Group Investment Commutiee (GIC), on behalf of the Group Board, 1s responstble for reviewing and approving the investment
strategy for the Group’s investment portfolios It provides approval for all major changes of the Group's investment strategy and, 1n
particular, approves any substantive changes to the balance of the Group’s funds between the major asset classes Importantly the GIC
also approves the terms of reference of the Group’s matn operational investment commuttee, the Group Asset Management Committee
(GAMC) The BRC 1ssues GAMC with investment risk hmits

Interest rate risk

The fair value of the Company’s portfolio of fixed income securities 1s inversely correlated to changes 1n the market interest rates
Thus 1f interest rates fall, the fair value of the portfolio would tend to nise and vice versa as set out 1n the sensitivity analysis on page
29

Equity price risk

The Company’s portfolio of equity securities 15 subject to equity risk arsing from changes in market price Thus 1f the value of equities
nses so will the fair value of 1ts portfolio and vice versa as set out 1n the sensitivity analysis on page 29

The Group sets appropriate nisk limits to ensure that no sigmficant concentrations to individual companies anise The Group takes a
long term view tn selecting shares and looks to build value over a sustained period of time rather than utilising high level of purchase
and sales in order to generale short term gains from 1ts equity holdings

Property price risk

The Company’s portfolio of properties 1s subject to property price risk arising from changes in the market value of properues Thusf
the value of property falls so will the fair value of the portfolio as set out 1n the sensiuvity analysis on page 29

A number of the Company’s property holdings are Group occupied The Company’s investment in Investment property is recorded as
such and these investments are held as part of an efficient portfolio management strategy
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Currency risk
The Company incurs exposure to foreign currency exchange risk 1n two ways

¢  Operational currency nisk — by underwriting hiabilities in currencies other than the currency of the primary environment 1n which
the business units operate (non functional currencies)

*  Structural currency nsk - by investing in overseas subsidianes and operating an international insurance group

Operational currency risk 1s managed within the Company’s individual operations by broadly matching assets and habilines by
currency

Structural currency nisk 1s managed at a Group level through currency forward and foreign exchange option contracts within the hmuts
that have been set In managing structural currency nisk, the needs of the Group’s subsidiaries to maintain net assets in local currencies
to sausfy local regulatory solvency and wnternal nisk based caputal requurements are taken into account These assets should prove
adequate to support local insurance activities urrespective of exchange rate movements

Derivatives

The Company may use dertvative financial instruments for the purpose of reducing its exposure to adverse fluctuations i interest
rates, foreign exchange rates, equity prices and long term inflatton The Company does not use denivatives to leverage Its exposure to
markets and does not hold or 1ssue denivauve financial instruments for speculative purposes The policy on use of denivauves 1s
approved by the Board Risk Committee

Remaining hfe Fair value Notienal principal
amounts
Less than One to  More than
one year five years five years 2014 2013 2014 2013
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m

Cross currency
Asset 22 - - 22 43 1,285 1,459
Liability 20 10 - 30 38 950 1204
Inflation
Asset - - 28 28 9 Seebelow Seebelow
Liability - - 39 39 7 Seebelow  See below
Equty/index
Asset - - - - 6 Seebelow  See below
Liabilty - - - - 21 See below  See below

At 31 December 2013 there were derivative contracts 1n place to protect the value of the UK, Canadian, European and US equity
portfohos of the Group These denvatives were closed tn 2014 These provided limited protection against declines 1n market levels
whilst also capping participation 1n any appreciation of the market In total, this strategy covered an underlying equity value up to
approximately £379m at 31 December 2013 If UK, Canadian, European and US equity markets decreased by 15%, the impact of
these derivatives as at 31 December 2013, would have been to decrease the impact of the decline by £28m

The Company 1s party to a series of swap contracts which collectuively provide hmited cover against a sharp increase 1n long term
mflation In total the swap contracts provide inflation cover over a nomnal value of £180m (2073 £180m) and are spht over different
contracl terms

]

At 31 December 2014 the Company holds currency forward contracts and foreign exchange options to reduce structural foreign
exchange nisk

Sensitivity analysis
The Group uses a number of sensitivity or stress-test based risk management tools to understand the impact of the above risks on
carmings and capital 1n both normal and stressed conditions  These stress tests combine deterministic shocks, analysis of historical

scenanos and stochastic modelling using the internal capital model to inform the Group’s decision making and planning process and
also for identification and managementi of risks within the business units
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Sensitivity analysis (continued)

The following tables provides an indication for the Company of some of the single factor changes adopted within the Group

Impact of a 10% change 1n Pounds Sterling against Dantsh Krone/Euro Canadian Dollar or Swedish Krona on shareholders’ funds

10% 10% 10% 10% 10% 10%
strengthening weakening strengthening  weakenmg  strengthening weakening
1n Pounds tn Pounds 1n Pounds in Pounds in Pounds 1n Pounds
Sterling Sterling Sterling Sterling Sterling Sterling
aganst agamnst against against against against
Damish Danmish Canadian Canadian Swedish Swedish
Krone /Euro  Krone / Euro Dollar Dollar Krona Krona
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Movement 1n  shareholders’ (37) 46 (61) 75 (34) 42
funds at 31 December 2014
Movement n  shareholders’ {53) 67 (45) 55 (36) 44

funds at 31 December 2013

Impact on fair value of investments (note 1 and note 4}

Increase/(decrease)
2014 2013
£m £m

Interest rate markets {note 2)
Impact en fixed interest securities of increase 1n interest rates of
100bps 221 (160)
Decrease of equity markets (note 3)
Direct impact on equities of a 15% fall in equity
markets 3) 39
Mitigating impact ansing from derivatives
held - 28
Property markets (note 3)
Decrease of property markets of 15% 54) {46)
Notes

| Ths analysis assumes that there 15 no comrelation between equity price, interest rate and property market rate nsks It also assumes that all other assets and liabihies
reman unchanged and that no management action 1s taken This analysis does not represent management s view of future market change, but reflects management s
view of key sensiuvittes

2 ‘The sensitivity of the fixed iterest secunties of the Company has been modelled by reference to a reasonable approximation of the average interest rate sensitivity
of the investments held within each of the portfolios

3 The effect of movements in equity and property markets 15 refiected as a one time decrease of worldwide equity and property markets on 1 January 2015 and 1
January 2014 which results in a 15% dechine 1n the value of the Company’s assets m these investment categones

4 Thus analysis has not considered the impact of the above market changes on the valuation of the Company's insurance contract liabilities or retirement benefit
obligations

5 Thus analysis 15 presented gross of the comesponding tax credits/{charges)
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Liqumdity risk

Liquidity nisk 1s the nsk that the Company may unable to pay obligations when due as a result of assets not being available 1n a ferm
that can be immediately converted mto cash The invesiment risk limits set by the BRC ensure that a large part of the Company’s
portfolio 1s kept in highly hquid marketable secunities sufficient to meet 1ts liabilities as they fall due based on actuarial assessment
and allowing for contingencies The limits are momtored at a Group level as part of the Group Risk exposure momtoring and BRC
reporting process  In addition the Company has commttied credit facihues available as set out 1n note 26

Maturity periods or contractual repricing

The following table summarises the contractual repricing or maturity dates (whiche ver 1s earlier) for financial liabilities that are subject
to fixed and vanable interest rates Dhrect insurance creditors are also presenied and are analysed by rematning duration until

settlement
Balance
Lessthan Oneto Twoto Threeto Fourto Fiveto sheet
ane year two years three four five years ten years  Total carrying
years years value
£m £fm £m £m £m £m fm £fm
2014
Financial hiabihties
Subordinated habhilities - - - - - 492 492 492
Amounts owed te Group undertakings 5,009 - - - - - 5,009 5,009
Amounts owed to credit institutions 342 - - - - - 342 342
Dervative trading habilities 20 - 1 - 9 39 69 69
Direct insurance creditors 116 - - - - - 116 116
Remsurance ereditors 330 152 63 1 - 546 546
Total 5,817 152 64 1 9 531 6,574 6,574
Interest on subordinated habilities 46 46 46 46 46 46 276 -
Balance
Less than Oneto Twoto Threeto Fourto Fiveto sheet
one year (wo years three four years five years ten years Total carrying
years value
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
2013
Financial habilities
Subordinated hiabilities - - - - - 492 492 492
Amounts owed to Group undertakings 7.223 - - - - - 7,223 7223
Amounts owed to credit institutions 364 - - - - - 364 364
Derivative trading hiabilities 64 2 - - - - 66 66
Direct msurance creditors 118 1 - - - - 119 119
Reinsurance creditors 226 - 1 - - - 227 227
Total 7,995 3 l - - 492 8.491 8,491
Interest on subordinated habihities 46 16 46 46 46 46 276 -

Own Risk and Solvency Assessment (ORSA)

The Solvency Il direcuve introduces a requirement for undertakings to conduct an ORSA  In anticipation of this requirement, the

Group has updated 1ts risk and capital management processes
The Group defines 1ts ORSA as a senes of inter-related activities by which it establishes
* The quanuty and quality of the nisks which 1t seeks 10 assume

e The level of capital required to support those risks
*  The actions 1t will take to achieve and maintain the desired levels of nsk and capital

The assessments of how much nisk to assume and how much capital to hold are inextricably linked In some situations, 1t may be desirable
1o increase the amount of nisk assumed or retained 1n order to make the most efficient use of capital available or else to return excess
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Own Risk and Solvency Assessment (ORSA) (continued}

capital to caputal providers  In other situations, where the nisk assumed give nise to a capital requirement that 15 greater than the capital
immediately available to support those risks, 1t will be necessary either to reduce the nisk assumed or to obtain additional capital

The assessment of risk and solvency needs 1s 1n principle carned out continuously In practice the assessment consists of a range of
specific activities and decisions carned out at different imes of the year as part of an annual cycle, supplemented as necessary by ad hoc
assessments of the impact of external events and developments and of internal business proposals

Papers are presented to the Board throughout the year dealing with individual elements that make up the ORSA  The mformation
contained in those papers and the associated decisions taken are summarnsed 1n an annual ORSA report

Capital management

The Company 1s the major UK nsurer within the group of compames (the ‘Group’) controlled by RSA Insurance Group plc and 1s
regulated by the Prudential Regulation Authonty (‘PRA’} and Financial Conduct Authority (‘FCA”)

Capital appetite

The Group and the Company's objective 15 to maintain sufficient capital, which compnses shareholders” equity and subordinated loan
caputal. to meet 1ts plan and objectives This represents sufficient surpluses for both regulatory and economic capital, as well as sufficient
capital 1o support the Group's and the Company’s aim of marmntaining single ‘A’ rauings To assist 1n managing its capital position, the Group
has set internal target coverage ratios for each of the prnincipal capital measures

The Group’s regulated entities hold appropriate levels of caputal to satisfy applicable local regulations In certain wnstances this could
restrict the subsidianies’ abality to transfer funds to the UK parent where retained earnings form part of the local required regulatory
capital Additionally, regulation in certain countries 1n which the Group's subsidiaries operate may also 1mpose other imitations such
as foreign exchange control restnicuions

Economic capital

Economuc capttal 1s the Group’s preferred measure of capital sufficiency Itis the Group’s own assessment of the amount of capital it needs
to hold to meet its obligations given the Group’s risk appetite

The Group’s economic capital analysis compares available capital with the economic capital assessment (ECA) Available capital 15 the
capital (over and above the IFRS insurance labilittes) that 1s available to absorb losses It mcludes subordinated debt, but excludes items
such as goodwill and other intangible assets, deferred tax items and pension scheme surpluses and deficits ECA 15 the capital required at a
confidence level equivalent to Standard & Poor’s long term A rated bond default curve At 31 December 2014, the Group’s surplus econorme
capital calibrated to Standard & Poor's long term A rated bond default curve was approximately £0.9bn (2013 £0 7bn)

The cconomic capital modet 1s used to support, inform and improve the Group's decision making across the Group It 1s used to determine
the Group’s optimum capital structure it investment strategy, 1ts reinsurance programme and to determune the pricing and target returns for
each portfolio The economsc capital model 15 also used for the Group’s Individual Capital Assessment {ICA) The only adjustment made 15
to use the PRA's required calibration

Regulatory solvency position

The Group and Company remain compliant with both the PRA’s nisk based ICA methodology and Solvency I, which 1s used 1o
calculate the Insurance Groups Directive (IGD) requirement

As at 31 December 2014 the Group and Company have an esumated unaudited Solvency | surplus of approximately €1 8bn
(unaudited) (203 £0 2bn) and £1.8bn (unaudited) (2013 £0 3bn) respectively The coverage ratio for the Company stood at
approximately 2 2 imes (unaudited) at 31 December 2014 (2013 1 2 times)

The Group and Company received their latest Individual Capital Guidance (based on their ICA submission) from the PRA tn early
2014 and at the request of the PRA remains confidential The ICA 1s a forward looking, economic assessment of the capital
requirements of the Group and Company based on the assessment of the risks to which 1t 1s exposed The models used to determine
the ICA have been integrated 1nto the Company’s business processes and are used to enhance the management of the Company
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2014 2013
£m £m
Reorganisation costs 79 15
Operating lease rentals — equipment - i
Impairment of tangible assets 2 25
Reorganisation costs comprised employee redundancy costs, vacant lease accruals and other restructuring expenses
5 Exchange rates
2014 2014 2013 2013
The rates of exchange used in these accounts 1n respect of the major Cumulative End of Cumulative End of
overseas CUrrencles are Average Period AverEEe Period
Euro 1.24 129 118 120
US Dollar 165 1.56 1 56 1 66
Hong Kong Dollar 12.77 12.09 1213 1284
Singapore Dollar 209 2.07 1 96 209
6 Segmental mformation
(a) by class of business
Accident  Motor Fire & Marme Third Party Assistance Other Re- Total
& Health PropertyAviation & Liabithty Insurance
Transport
2014 £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Gross premiums written 46 916 1,519 347 408 14 272 363 3,885
Gross premiums earned 54 939 1,516 342 423 14 264 376 3,928
Gross clamms mcurred 31) (704) {765) {238) {342) (5) (183) {223) (2,491)
Gross operating a7) (225) (608) (114} (161) () (91) 95 (1,320)
expenses
Gross technical result 6 10 143 (10) 80) - (10) 58 117
Reinsurance balance (5) (39) {178) (26) {41) - 1 (60) (348)
Net technical result 1 29 (35) (36) (zn - 9 2) (231)
Accident Motor Fire & Marmne Third Party Assistance Other Re- Total
& Health Property Aviation &  Liability Insurance
Transport
2013 £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Gross premiums written 49 1,022 1,507 395 425 20 270 333 4,221
Gross premiums earned 56 967 1.511 365 453 21 273 487 4,133
Gross claims incurred 32) (796) (704) (2706) (506) (6) (155) (271) (2,746)
Gross operating expenses (15) (231) (614) (77) (170) (7) (92) (146) (1,352)
Gross techmcal result 9 (60} 193 12 (223) g 26 70 33
Reinsurance balance - (28) (178) (6) 19 - (1) (40} (244)
Net technical result 9 (88) 15 6 (204) 8 15 30 (209)

All of the business above relates to general insurance which 1s constdered to be the only business segment
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(b) by geographical segment

2014 2013
£m £m

Gross premiums written for direct business by ongin
UK 2,995 3.168
Other EEA 314 341
Other 213 179
3,522 3,688

Gross premiums are disclosed by ongmn  There 15 no matenal difference between the amounts shown and those by reference to
destimation (1 ¢ location of nsk)

Total commissions for direct insurance business accounted for by the Company during the year amounted to £640m (2013 £616m)

7 Auditors Remuneration
Fees payable to KPMG LLP for the audit of the Company’s annual accounts was £1,098,086 {2013 £1,030,875} Details of non-

audit fees payable to KPMG LLP are disclosed in the RSA Insurance Group plc 2014 Annual Report & Accounts Audit fees of
£235,185 (2013 £154,125) are also paid by RS Alple on behalf of certain subsidiary undertakings

8 Directors’ emoluments

2014 2013
£000 £000

The aggregate emoluments of the directors, including amounts received from subsidiaries, were as follows
Salanes and bonuses 2,018 2498
Allowances, benefits and other awards 327 515
2,345 3,013

The criteria for making bonus awards 1s based on targeted levels of business sector profit and specific business objectives

As at 31 December 2013, there was an interest free loan of £5,000 outstanding to A P Brown under the standard terms of the
Group’s UK Car Ownership Scheme, which 1s open to all UK managers within a quahfying salary band The loan was repaid duning
2014

At 31 December 2013 C J R Rash had a loan outstanding from the Company of £12,000 The loan was provided to cover personal
tax paid but recoverable relating to hus employment with a subsidiary of the Company The loan was repaid in January 2014

2014 2013
£000 £000

The emoluments of the highest paid director (D A Weymouth (2073 § P & Lee)) were
Salary, bonus, allowances, benefits and other awards 718 1 009

At 31 December 2014 the highest paid director had accrued annual pension of £mil (20/3 £nef) This figure 1s based on the amount of
annual pension which would be payable on his attaiming normal pension age if he had left the Company’s service on 31 December
2014

Contnibutions of £34,851 (2013 £84,502) were made to Group defined contribution schemes during the year in respect of the directors
Two directors have exercised share options and four directors have had share awards which vested during the relevant period

The highest pard director exercised share options and shares were received in respect of qualifying services under a long term incentive
plan
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9 Employees and staff costs

2014 2013
£fm £m
Wages and salaries 323 360
Social security costs 36 40
Other pension costs 39 49
398 449
Other pension costs include only those items included within operating costs
The average monthly number of persons (including executive directors) employed by
the Company during the year was 2014 2013
UK 7,402 7,920
Other EEA 243 243
Other 320 320
7,965 8.483

10 Retirement benefits

The Company operates defined contribution pension schemes and funded and unfunded defined benefit pension schemes The assets
of the funded schemes are held mainly in separate trustee admimstered funds

In Aprit 2002, the defined benefit schemes were effectively closed to new entrants following the introduction of a new, primanly
defined contribution, scheme (the 2002 scheme) However, due {0 a small defined benefit underpin, the 2002 Scheme 1s sull disclosed
as a defined benefit scheme

In 2005, following discussions with the Trustees and consultation with the members, the defined benefit schemes were altered from
providing benefits on a final salary basis to benefits on a revalued average salary basis with effect from 1 January 2006 Under the
new benefit formula, the accrued benefits of current active members are based on salaries at the date of change and will increase in
line with inflation each year (imited to 5% 1n any year) up to their retirement date Benefits earned 1n each year from 1 January 2006
are based on salanies 1n that year and are revalued up to retirement

In addition to these changes, the 2002 scheme (which was the scheme to which new UK employees had been adrtted following the
closure of the defined benefit schemes to new members) has been closed to further accrual from 1 January 2006 It has been replaced
by a siakeholder arrangement and members of the 2002 Scheme and future new employees in the UK accrue future benefits on a
defined contribution basis under the stakeholder scheme In 2014 contributions of £14m (2073 £I18m) were made to defined
contribution schemes 1n the United Kingdom )

During 2009 the Company entered into arrangements that insured 55% of the retirement obligations relating to pensions 1n payment
in the two main UK schemes The arrangements comprise assets and interest rate swaps combined with an insurance contract that
provide for the full payment of the pensions 1n return for the actual investment return on a segregated portfolio of assets heid by the
pension funds at the inception of the arrangement The pension schemes continue to benefit from the assets held in the porifolio and
retan the obligation to meet the 1nsured pension obligaunons The assets and pension obligations are therefore not derecognised 1n the
financial statements and an asset (representing the recovery of the insured pension obligations) and a liability {to pay the investment
return on the portfolio of assets to the insurer) are recogmsed

During 2010 changes were made to the benefit structure of the three main UK schemes Changes affected future accrual from 1 March
2010 onwards  Accrual rates were reduced, the retirement age was increased revaluation was subject to a cap of 2 5%, a cap was
applied 10 the salary used for the defined benefit schemes and the schemes contracted back 1nto the State scheme Employees were
entitled 1o join the stakeholder scheme for earnings above the cap

During 2014 two of the three main UK schemes were merged, creating two main UK schemes
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The UK schemes are managed through trusts with independent trustees responsible for the safeguard of the tnterests of all members
The trustees meet regufarly with Group management to discuss the funding position and any proposed changes to the schemes The
schemes are regulated by The Pension Regulator Each scheme 1s subject to trienmal valuations, which are used to determine the
future funding of the schemes by the Group including funding to repair any funding deficit

At the most recent funding valuations the main UK funds had an aggregate funding deficit of £477m, equivalent to a funding level
of 93% The Group and the Trustees agreed funding plans at that time to ehminate the funding deficits by 2022 Details of the deficit
contributions paid in 2013 and 2014 and that are due to be paid in 2015 under these plans are disclosed below

The Scheme Actuanes also carry out interim assessments on an annual basis and at the last epdate as at 31 March 2014 the funding
level was estimated to have increased to 97% This update 1s not formally agreed between the Group and the Trustees but reflects
changes 1n market conditiens and the deficit contributions paid

For the two main UK defined benefit schemes, the level of contributions 1in 2014 were £93m (2013 £92m) of which £64m (2013
£65m) were additional contributions 1n line with the plan to reduce their funding deficits  Expected contributions to the two schemes
for the year ending 31 December 2015 are approximately £82m, including £65m of additional contrnibutions to reduce the deficit
Further additional contributions may become due once the results of the March 2015 funding valuations are known (results expected
in 2016)

The components of the defined benefit pension cost that are inciuded within profit before tax in the financial statements are as follows

2014 2013

£m £m

Current service cost 17 17
Past service cost 4 5
Gatn on settlement/curtallment (1) -
Total charge included in profit before tax 20 22
Expected return on assets 277 (243)
Interest cost on pension scheme liabilities 282 252
Total financing charge included in profit before tax 5 9

The schemes are effectively closed to new entrants The current service cost, under the projected unit method, measured as a percentage
of uctive members’ salanes, 1s likely to rise as the members’ age profile increases

Amounts recogmsed within the statement of total recognised gains and losses

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
£m £m £m £m £m
Actual return on assets 1n excess of expected return on assets 912 72 226 386 244
Experience gains /(losses) on labilities 38 16 (28) {70 (43)
Change 1n actuanial assumptions underlying the present value of scheme {(782) (237 (358) (364) (8B2)
liabilities
Actuanatl gain/(loss) 168 (149) (160) “48) 119
Deferred taxation - (33 25 35 10 (35)
Recogmsed in the statement of total r%msed_gams and losses 135 (124) (125) (38) 84
Movement in deficit during the year 2014 2013
£m £m
Deficut at 1 January (235 (149)
Total operatng charge 20 (22)
Employer contribution 96 94
Total financing credit (5) )]
Actuarial gain/(loss) 168 {149)
Surplus/(Deficit) at 31 December 4 {235)
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10 Retirement benefits (conttnued)

The value of the defined benefit liabtlity that 1s included at 31 December in the financial statements 1s as follows

2014 2013
£m £m

Equties 961 1.062
Bonds 6,185 4925
Other (69) 180
Present value of funded obhgations fully covered by insurance arrangement 1,640 1,561
Value of obhgations under insurance arrangement (1,674) (1,721)
Fair value of assets held by penston schemes 7,043 6,007
Present value of pension liabilities (7,039) (6,242)
Net surplus/(deficit) 4 (235)
Related deferred tax (habulity)/asset - 1) 47
Pension fund asset 87 2
Pension fund liabihty (84) (190)
Net pension asset/(liability) 3 (188)

Included in the profit and loss account reserve 1s a pension and post retirement reserve on a FRS 17 basis at 31 December 2014 of

£(820)m (2013 £(955)m)

The following 1+ a reconciliation of the Company’s retirement benefit obligations

2014 2013
£m £m
Retirement benefit obligations at 1 January 6,242 5.985
Current service costs 17 17
Past service costs 4 5
Interest costs 282 252
Actuanal loss on obligations 744 221
Settlement/curtailment ()] -
Benefits paid (241) (238)
Retirement benefit otmglatmns at 31 December 7,039 6,242
The following 15 a reconciliation of the Company’s pension schemes™ assets
2014 2013
£m £m
Pension schemes’ assets at 1 January 6,007 5,836
Return on schemes’ assets 1,189 315
Contributions by the employer 96 94
Settlement/curtailment (8) -
Benefits paid (241) (238)
Pension schemes’ assets at 31 December 7,043 6,007
Additional information for the current annual period and previous four annual periods
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
£fm £m £m £m £m
At 31 December
Present value of defined benefit obligations 7,039 6,242 5.985 5 544 5,046
Fair value of plan assets 7,043 6,007 5,836 5455 4,927
Surplus/(Deficit) 4 (235) (149) {89 (119)
Expenience adjustments on plan habilities 38 16 (28) (70) (43)
Experience adjustments on plan assets 914 72 226 386 244
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The principal actuarial assumptions used were as follows

2014 2013
% %
Assumphions used in calculation of retirement benefit obligation
Interest rate used to discount habihiues 37 46
Annual rate of general inflation 30 33
Annual rate of increase in salaries 30 33
Annual rate of increase 1n pensions 29 32
Assumptions used 1n calculation of profit & loss account credit/charge 1n year
Discount rate 46 43
Expected return on
Equities 60 60
Bonds 39 34
Other 45 49

The expected return on schemes’ assets are determined for each asset class by considertng both market conditions at the begmning of
the reporting pertod and any expectations for longer term changes in current returns  All returns are net of investment expenses

Retirement benefit obligattons compnse unfunded schemes £9m (2073 £10m) and funded schemes £7,030m (2013 £ 6,232m)
Mortality rate

The mortality assumptions are set following investigations of the main schemes’ recent expenence by the schemes’ actuanes for the
funding valuations At the funding valuation mm March 2012, the mortality assumptions adopted for the main UK schemes used the

SAPS Light Normal base table with percentage adjustments to reflect the schemes' recent experience compared with that expected
under these tables The next funding valuation has an effective date of March 2015, with results expected in 2016

Reductions 1n future mortality rates are allowed for using the CMI 2013 tables with a long term rate of 1% The weighted average
assumptions imply that a current pensioner aged 60 has an expected future lifetime of 27.6 {2013 27 6) years (males) and 28 9 (20/3
29 2) years (females) and a future pensioner aged 60 1n 15 years tume has a future expected ifetime from age 60 of 28.7 (2013 28 3)
years (males) and 30.1 (2013 30 0) years (females)

Commutation

Each of the UK defined benefit pension schemes has changed 1ts rules to allow for increased commutation following ‘A day’ 1n Apnl
2006 In 2013 and 2014, the Group followed the funding valuation assumptions, and an allowance was made for future commutation
using the current commutation factors

Sensiivity analysis

The discount rate the assumed inflation rate and the mortality assumptions all have a significant effect on the FRS 17 accounting
valuauon A 0 25% mcrease 1n the discount rate would reduce the defined benefit obligations 1n the UK not covered by the insurance
arrangement by £202m (2013 £168m} A 025% mcrease w the inflation rate assumpnon would increase the defined benefut
obligations 1n the UK not covered by the insurance arrangement by £149m (2013 £/20m) An increase of one year in life expectancy
would increase the defined benefit obligations 1n the UK not covered by the insurance arrangement by approximately £133m (20/3
£98m)

11 Share based payment

The RSA Insurance Group (the Group) has five types of share bascd payment plans which are settled 1n the form of ordinary shares the
Long Term Incentive Plan (LTIP), the Performance Share Plan (PSP), the Sharesave Plan (SAYE), the Sharebuild Plan and the Executive
Share Option Scheme (ESOS) Dilution levels for all schemes are held strictly wathin Association of Briush Insurers himits  Further
information on the LTIP and PSP schemes 1s included below and information on the other share schemes can be found 1n the remuneration
report

The total employment cost recorded n the profit and loss account for all plans 1s £6m 1n 2014 (203 £6m)
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11 Share based payment {continued)

Analysis of share scheme costs (per profit and loss account)

2014 2013

£m £m

LTIP 1 2
PSP 2 -
SAYE 1 2
Sharebuild 2 2
Total [ 6

The value of the awards granted during 2014 1s £7m (2013 £70m) of which £2m (2013 £2m)1s charged to the profit and loss account
The balance of the value of the awards will be charged to the profit and loss account duning the remaining vesting periods

Analysis of new awards costs

2014 2013
Charge for year  Total value Charge for year Total value
£m £m Lm £m
LTIP - - 2 7
PSP 2 4 - -
SAYE - 1 ; 1
Sharebuild 2 - 2
Total 2 7 2 10

Performance Share Plan
The Performance Share Plan for Executive Directors and other selected executives was adopted following approval obtained at the 2014
AGM The first awards were made under this scheme 1n 2014

The structure of the plan allows for three different types of awards to be made

The Remuneration Commuttee may defer a portion of an individual’s gross bonus (limsted to 50% of that bonus) into an award over shares
referred to for the purpose of the plan as Deferred Bonus Shares  Deferred Bonus Shares awards are generally retained 1f an employee leaves
the Group unless the employee 15 dismissed for cause The awards are not subject to performance conditions

Additionally, the Remunerauon Committee may make conditional awards of Performance Shares o senior executives and conditional awards
of Restricted Shares to other executives and semor managers Awards of Performance Shares are subject to a performance condition
consisting of a combination of a return on tangible equity target, a total sharcholder return target {with performance measured by comparison
against other European insurance companies) and a business review scorecard target over a single three year performance penod Restricted
Shares are not subject 1o performance conditions All awards vest on the thuird anniversary of the date of grant to the extent that the
performance conditions have been met If an employee resigns from the Company, then Performance Shares and Restnicted Shares lapse at
date of leaving the Company However, the Remuneration Commuttee has the discretnion to modify the treatment of leavers® share awards
that have yet to be released, based on the leaving circumstances, where this 1s appropnate and in shareholders’ interests Awards retained
will vest on the normal vesting date

Long Term Incentive Plan ~

The Long Term Incentive Plan for Executive Directors and other selected executives was adopted fellowing approval obtaned at the
Group's 2006 AGM Awards have been made each year since 2006 following shareholder approval

The structure of the plan allows for a number of different types of awards to be made
Voluntary Invested Deferred Shares are purchased by participants from net bonus payable (imited to a maximum vaiue of 33% of net bonus)

Voluntary Invested Deferred Shares are held in trust for three years
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Loong Term Incentive Plan (continued)

In addition for semor executives, the Remuneration Committee may defer a portion of an individual’s gross bonus (hmited to 33% of that
bonus) into an award over shares referred to for the purpose of the plan as Compulsory Deferred Shares Compulsory Deferred Shares awards
are normally forfeited on an employee leaving the Company No further performance conditions apply

The Remuneratton Commuttee may make a conditional award of shares on 2 ‘matched’ basis to Voluntary Invested and Compulsory Deferred
Shares ("Matching Shares’™) up to a maximum of 2 1 and these are normally forfeited on an employee leaving the Company

Additionally, the Remuneration Committee may make conditional awards of Performance Shares to senior executives and conditional awards
of Restncted Shares to other executives and sentor managers

Awards of Performance Shares and Maiching Shares related to Compulsory Deferred Shares are subject to a performance condition
consisuing of a combination of a return on equity target and a total shareholder return target (with performance measured by companson
agamnst other European insurance compantes) over a single three year performance penod Matching Shares related to Voluntary Invested
Deferred Shares are subject only to the return on equity performance condition Restricted Shares are not subject to performance conditions
All awards vest on the thurd anniversary of the date of grant to the extent that the performance conditions have been met Performance Shares
and Resmricted Shares are normally forfeited on an employee leaving the Company

Further information on the LTIP and PSP can be found 1n the Remuneration Report within the Corporate Governance section of the
Annual Report and Accounts of the Group Further disclosures 1n respect of the ESOS, SAYE and Sharebuild schemes have not been

made on the grounds that the schemes are immatenal to the Company

12. Investment income, expenses and charges

Investment income Net realised Net unrealised Total investment
gains/(losses) gains/(losses) return
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Investment income
Investment property 24 23 0 5 30 (7 54 21
Equity securities 7 22 32 8 6 (6) 45 24
Debt securities 127 121 n 1 127 1ty 253 11
Other investments
Loans to subsidiaries 5 3 - - - - 5 3
Other - 3 - - - - - 3
Deposits, cash at bank and 1n hand 5 i - - (1) 2 4 (¢}
Derivatives 1 1 4 (14) (1 9) 4 (22)
169 174 35 - 161 (135) 365 39
Dividends from subsidiary undertakings 2,157 435 - - - - 2,157 435
2,326 609 35 - 161 (135 2,522 474
Impairment of subsidiary undertakings (1,870) - - - - - (1,870) -
Investment expenses, charges and interest
Interest on bank loans and overdrafts 3 {3)
Interest on other loans (111) O
Investment management expenses (5) (7
Unwind of discount - 3)
119 (110)
Net investment return 533 364
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Royal & Sun Alliance Insurance plc

Notes to the accounts (continued)

2014 2013
£m £m

Current tax
UK Corporation tax (3) )
Overseas taxation credit 8 4
Adjustments 1n respect of prnior periods 3) D]
Total current tax 2 {

Deferred tax
Timing differences — ongination and reversal 88 (59)
Adjustments 1n respect of prior peniods 13 (5)
Adjustment for change 1n tax rates - 25
Total deferred tax 101 (39)
Tax charge/(credit) 103 (46)

UK corporation tax for the current year 1s based on a rate of 21.49% (2013 23 25%)

Factors affecting the current tax charge/(credu})

The current tax charge for the year 1s less than 21.49% (2013 less than 23 25%) due to the 1tems sel out 1n the reconciliation below

2014 2013
£m £m
Profit on ordinary activities before tax 387 128
Tax at 21 49% (2013 at 23 25%) 83 30
Factors affecting (credit)/charge
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 401 13
Tax exempt income and 1nvestment gains/losses {480) (106}
Fiscal adjustments (11) (13)
Adjustment to tax charge 1n respect of previous periods 3) (7N
Group relief surrendered without payment 6 8
Unrelieved foreign tax credits 10 1
Other iming differences {4) 67
Current tax charge/(credit) for the year 2 (7)
Other debtors includes £27m (2013 £29m) in respect of corporation tax recervable
14. Dividends
2014 2013
£m £m
Pad ml (2013 8 87p) interim divadend per ordmary share - 400
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Goodwill Renewal Total
on rights
acqumsition
2014 2014 2014
£m £m £m
Cost
At ] January 23 18 46
Additions - 8 8
At 31 December 28 26 54
Amortisation
At | January (12) (15) @n
Charge for the year (b (1) 2)
At 31 December (13 (16) 29)
Net book value
At 31 December 2014 15 10 25
At31 December 2013 16 3 19
16. Investments
2014 2013
£m £m
Land and buildings
Freehold 344 288
Long leasehold 18 18
Short leasehold - -
Total land and buildings 362 306
Of which Group occupied 24 20
Movement in the carrying value of land and buildings s detailed below
Land and buildings at | January 306 317
Sales - (36)
Purchases 22 32
Fair value gains/(losses) 34 (7
Land and buildings at 31 December 362 306
The historical cost of property at 31 December1s £377m (2013 £355m)
2014 2013
£m £m
Other financial investments
Shares and other vanable yield secunties and units 1o umit trusts 249 362
Debt securities and other fixed income securnities
Brinsh government securities 1,212 926
Other government securities 278 162
Corporate bonds 3,145 2,193
At fair value through profit or loss (designated as such upon nitial 4,875 3.643
recogmtion)
Loans and deposits with credit institutions
Other loans 7 11
Deposits with credit institutrons 118 63
Loans and receivables 125 74
Total other finanoal imvestments 5,000 3,717
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2014 2013
£m £m
Listed investments
Included 1n total investments are the following
Shares and other varnable yield securities and units in unit trusts 47 287
Debt secunities and other fixed income securities 4,036 2,820
4,083 3,107

Included within shares and other variable yield securities and units in unit trusts above are ordinary shares 10 RSA Insurance Group
plc, the Company’s ultimate parent, held by the Royal & Sun Allhlance ESOP Trust and Royal & Sun Alhance ESOP Trust No 2,

which have a carrying value of £0 8m (20713 £0 2m)
The historical cost of total investments 1s £5,069m (2013 £4,017m)

The property valuations have been prepared on the basis of open market value at the balance sheet date 1n accordance with The Royal
Institute of Chartered Surveyors’ Appraisal and Valuauon Manual by Messrs Jones Lang LaSalle, external quahfied valuation

SUrveyors

Fair value measurements recognised in the balance sheet

The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments that are measured subsequent to 1mual recogmtion at fair value,
grouped nto Levels 1 to 3 based on the degree 10 which the fair value 15 observable

Farr value hierarchy

Level1 Level2 Level 3 Total
2014 2014 2014 2014
£m £m £m £m
Financial assets at faur value through the profit and loss account

Equity securities 138 - 102 240
Debt secuntics 4,529 105 1 4,635
4,667 105 103 4,875

Dernvative assets 50 - - 50
Derivauve habilities (49) (20) - (69)
Total 4,668 85 103 4,856

Fair value hierarchy

Level 1 Level2 Level 3 Total

2013 2013 2013 2013
£m £m £m £m

Financial assets at fair value through the profit and loss account

Equity securities 303 - 59 362
Debt secunties 3,188 91 2 3,281
3,491 91 61 3,643

Dervative assets 58 - . 58
Denvative hiabtlities (66) - - (66)
Total 3.483 91 6l 3,635

None of the Company’s insurance habihities are measured at fair value There were no transfers between Level | and Level 2 duning

the year

A reconcihation of Level 3 fair value measurements of financial assets 1s shown 1n the table below There are no financial habilines

measured at farr value using Level 3 fair value measurements
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Notes to the accounts (continued)

16. Investments (continued)

Equity Debt
securities securities Total
£m £m £fm
Balance at 1 January 2013 38 2 40
Total gawns or losses recognsed 1n the profit and loss account 4) - (€]
Purchases 25 - 25
Disposals - - -
Balance at 31 December 2013 59 2 61
Total gains or losses recogmsed 1n the profit and loss account 3) (1) (4)
Purchases 58 - 58
Disposals (12) - (12)
Balance at 31 December 2014 102 1 103

There were no transfers (nte or out of Level 3 during the penod  Of the total gains or losses for the period (shown n the reconciliation
above) included 1n the profit and loss account, a loss of £6m (2073 £4m) relates to assets held at the end of the reporting period

17. Investment in subsidiary undertakings

The Company’s principal subsidianies at 31 December 2014 are set out 1n note 34 The compames are principally all engaged in the
transaction of insurance or related business The countries shown are those of incorporaton and principal operation The figure for
shares 1n subsidhiaries in the balance sheet comprises

2014 2013
£m £m

Net asset value:
At 1 January 10,229 10,676
Acquisitions 115 243
Disposals (102) (38)
Impairments {1,870 -
Revaluation (66) (652)
At 31 December 8,306 10,229

The historical cost of investments 1n subsidiaries after impairments 1s £9,855 (2013 £11,728m)

Acquisitions of £115m 1n 2014 comprise capital injections of £111m nto RSA Insurance Ireland Ltd and £4m into Intouch Insurance
Group BV Disposals of £102m relates to the disposals of AAS Balta and Lietuvos Draudimas AB and the liquidanion of Royal Life
Building and construction Impairments of £1,870m relate to Ellan Vannin RSA (No 2) Ltd, RSA Finance Ltd, Intouch Insurance Group
BV and RSA Reinsurance Ireland Ltd following capital reductions and distribution of capital

Profit/(loss) on disposal of subsidiarnies comprises the following,

2014 2013
£m £m

Proceeds 189 18
Cost (102) {38)
Expenses {6) -
Profit/Loss on disposal 81 (20)
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18. Interests in associated undertakings

The Company has a 26 0% holding of ordinary shares in Roval Sundaram Alliance Insurance Lumited, which operates and 15
mncorporated in India

2014 2013

£m £m
Net asset value:
At | January 15 14
Foreign exchange losses - (2)
Acquisifions - 1
Revaluations 3 2
At 31 December 18 15

The historical cost of interests 1n associated undertakings 1s £19m (2013 £19m)

19 Tangible assets

Eguipment Computer Total

software
2014 2014 2014
£m £m £m
Cost
At 1 January 68 208 276
Additions 27 - 27
Disposals {21) 93) {114)
At 31 December 74 115 189
Depreciation Q
At 1 January (38) (153) {(191)
Charge for the year &) (18) 27
Impairment charge ) - (2)
Disposals 21 93 114
At 31 December (28) (78) (106)
Net book value
At 31 December 2014 46 37 83
At 31 December 2013 30 55 85
20. Share capital
2014 2013
£m £m

Allotted, 1ssued and fully paid up:
4,859,811,537 (2013 4,511,091,326) ordinary class A shares of 25p each 1,215 1,128
1¢2¢13 1) ordinary class B share of US$1 - -

The Company has two classes of shares, ordinary Class A shares of 25p each and ordinary Class B share of US$1 Each ordmnary
Class A share carnes the night to one vote at general meetings of the Company, the nght to receive dividend payments m accordance
with the number of shares held and the right to participate 1n any distribution of capital of the Company including on a winding-up
Each ordinary Class B share carnes no voting rights and no right to a dividend, but carries the right on winding-up of the Company
to a distribution n prionty to the Class A shares equivalent to the US$/£ exchange rate gain as set out m the Articles of Association,
payable in sterhing or US Dollars

During the year the Company allotted 348,720,211 ordinary Class A shares of 25p each with an aggregate nominal value of
£87,180,053 for a consideration of £395 1m
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21. Subordinated loan notes

2014 2013

£fm £m

Subordmated loan note equity instruments 78 372
Subordinated hiabihities 492 492

Subordinated loan note equity instruments

On 5 June 2006, the Company obtained a subordinated loan from RSA Insurance Group ple, its ulumate parent company, of £78m,
derived from the 1ssue of £375m of siep up perpetual guaranteed subordinated capital secunties on 12 May 2006 The notes have an
annual coupon of 6 701% The claims of the ultimate parent company on the loan are subordinated to the same extent as the claims
of the holders of the capital securities The loan has no specified maturity

On 8 December 2014, the company repaid a subordmnated loan from RSA Insurance Group plc, its ultumate parent company, of
£284m

Interest of £23m (2013 £23m) net of tax was paid during the year on the subordinated loan note equity instruments and has been
recognised 1n the Reconcihation of movement in shareholders’ funds on page 11

Subordinated habilimes

On 30 June 2009, The Company obtatned a subordrnated loan from RS A Insurance Group ple, its ulttmate parent company, of £492m,
derived from the 1ssue of £500m of subordinated guaranteed step-up notes on 20 May 2009 The notes have an annuzl coupon of
9375% The claims of the ultimate parent company on the loan are subordinated to the same extent as the claims of the holders of
the notes The loan has a matunty date of 20 May 2039 At 31 December 2014 the fair value of the subordinated hiabihtics 1s £602m
(2013 £589m)

22. Claims outstanding
Claims outsianding include claims on certain classes of business which have been discounted  The 101l value of outstanding claims
provisions less related reinsurance recoveries before discounting amounted to £4,485m (20/3 £4,583m) The total value of gross

outstanding clatms provisions before discounting amounted to £5,449m (2013 £5,537m)

Claims are discounted as follows

Discount rate Average period to
seitlement 1n years
2014 2013 2014 2013
Jo %
UK Asbestos & Environmental 4 00 4 00 10 12

In the UK certain long tail llabiulities are settled by an annwity  This 1s contained within the discounted value of UK and Scandinavian
annuities which 15 shown separately in note 20 of the Annual Report & Accounts of the Group

Prior year claims development

The movement 1n net incurred claims artsing from the difference between the net clams provision at the beginning of the year and
subsequent payments and the claims provision at the end of the year was a deficit of £6m (2013 £20m) )
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Notes to the accounts (continued)

2014 2013

£m £m

Provision as at | January s 316
Charged to the technical account - general business and 1n the profit on

ordinary activities before tax 13 3

Provision as at 31 December 332 319

As explained n note 1b)n, the effect of this provision 1s to decrease shareholders’ funds by £332m (20/3 £319m) The increase
m the provision during the year had the effect of decreasing the balance on the technical account for general business and the profit

on ordinary activities before taxation by £13m (2013 £3m)

24 Prowvisions for other nsks

2014 2013

£m £m

At 1 January 45 95
Charged to Profit and Loss Account 88 43
Uulised (73) (72)
Released (5) 2D
At 31 December 55 45

Provisions mclude provisions of £14m (2013 £10m) held relating to vacant property leases, dilapidations and refurbishments, the
costs relating to which will be borne across the period over which the leases expire, which is up to 20 years Provisions also include
Motor Insurance Bureau provision of £14m (2073 £15m) and reorganisation provisions of £11m (2013 £9m)

25 Deferred tax

Deferred tax for the current year 1s based on a rate of 20% (2013 20%)

2014 2013

£m £m

Unrealised mnvestment gains 2y 2
Accelerated capital allowances 78 71
Other tuming differences 77 167
Deferred tax asset 153 240
2014 2013

£m £m

Deferred tax asset at 1 January 240 186
Transfer in - 2
(Charge)/credit for the year — profit and loss account 87 77
Charge for the year — statement of (otal recognised gains and losses - -
Adjustment for change 1n tax rate — profit and loss account - (25)
Deferred tax asset at 31 December 153 240
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25 Deferred tax (continued)

At the balance sheet date, the Company had unused tax losses of £1,862m (2013 £7,990m) and unused tax credits of £3 5m (2013
£3 5m) available for offset against future profits A deferred tax asset of £56m (2013 £165m) has been recogmised 1n respect of
losses and £ml (20/3 £3 4m) has been recogmsed in respect of tax credits included within other temporary differences at 31
December 2014 No deferred tax asset has been recogmsed 1n respect of the tax losses of £1,582m (2073 £1,207m) due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams The losses may be carnied forward indefimtely

Net deferred tax assets of £152m (20/3 £287m), which are in excess of profits ansing from the reversal of existing taxable
temporary differences and that relate to tax junsdictions in which the Company has suffered a loss in exther the current or preceding
pernod, have been recogmsed on the basis that future taxable profits will be available against which these can be utihsed The
evidence for the future taxable profits 15 a forecast consistent with the three year operational plans prepared by the relevant
businesses, which are subject to mnternal review and challenge Where relevant, the forecast includes extrapolations of the
operational plans using assumptions consistent with those used n the plans

Total net deferred tax assets of £152m (2013 - £287m) includes £(1)m (2013 - £47m of deferred tax asset) of deferred tax liability
in respect of the pension surplus  The movement 1n deferred tax during the year 1n relation to the pension surplus 1s £(48)m (2013
- £12m) of which £(15)m (2013 - £(13)m)} 1s charged to the profit and loss account and £(33)m (2613 - £25m) debited 0 the
statement of total recognised gains and losses

26. Borrowings

2014 2013
£m £m
Amounts owed to credit institutions 342 364

Borrowings compnise secured loans from credit institutions and bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand At 31 December
2014 and 2013 the Company had in place a one hillion US Dollar Euro commercial paper programme There were no amounts
outstanding at 31 December 2014 (2013 £mil)

27 Other creditors
Other creditors including taxation and social security includes £mil (2013 £nul) 1n respect of corporation tax payable
28 Operating lease rentals

Lease commitments in 2014, by term of lease

Land & Buildings Other
2014 2013 2014 2013
£fm £m £m £m
Operating leases which expire

Within one year 2 9 -
Within two and five years 6 8 - -
After five years 6 7 - -
14 24 - -

All material leases of land and butldings are subject to rent review periods of between three and five years
29 Capital commitments

The estimated amount of capital commitments contracted but not provided for 1n these financial statements 1s £11m (2013 £/6m)
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30 Contingent habilities

Royal & Sun Alliance Insurance plc has guaranteed on behalf of RSA Insurance Group ple the following

+  the US $24m 8 95% subordiated guaranteed bonds due 15 October 2029,

s thessue of £375m step up perpetual guaranteed subordinated capital securittes There 1s an option to repay the bonds on
specific dates starting 12 July 2017,

* theissue of £500m 9 375% subordinated guaranteed step-up notes  There 1s an option to repay the notes on specific dates
from 20 May 2019,

¢ thessue of £400m 5 125% fixed rate reset guaranteed subordinated notes There 1s an option to repay the notes on specific
dates from 10 Qctober 2025,and

*  a£500m commutted credit facility, of which £nil has been drawn Advantage has been taken of the exempntion provided
in FRS 8 ‘Related Party Disclosures’ from disclosing details of transactions with RSA Insurance Group plc and s
subsidianies and associated undertakings

31 Cash flow statement

The Company 1s a wholly-owned subsidhary of RSA Insurance Group plc and the cash flows of the Company are included i the
consolidated cash flow statement of RSA Insurance Group plc The Company has thus taken advantage of the exemption permrtied
by FRS 1 (revised 1996) ‘Cash flow Statements’ and has elected not to prepare 1ts own cash flow statement

Advantage has been taken of the exemption provided 1n FRS 8 ‘Related Party Disclosures’ from disclosing details of transactions
with RS A Insurance Group ple and its subsidiaries and associated undertakings

32 Related party transactions

Advantage has been taken of the exemption provided in FRS 8 ‘Related Party Disclosures’ from disclosing details of transactions
with RS A Insurance Group plc and 1ts subsidianies and associated undertakings

33 Parent companies

The Company’s immediate parent company 1s Royal Insurance Holdings plc, which 1s registered in England and Wales

The Company’s ultimate parent company and controlling party 1s RSA Insurance Group plc, which 1s registered 1in England and
Wales and 1s the parent company of the smallest and largest group to consohdate these financial statements A copy of that
company’s accounts can be obtained from 20 Fenchurch Street, London, EC3M 3AU or from www rsagroup com
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34 Princapal substdiary companies

The Company’s immediate parent company 15 Royal Insurance Holdings ple, which 1s registered in England and Wales

The Company’s vltimate parcnt

Principal activity

Unmited Kingdom

Brinsh Aviation Insurance Company Limited (57 1%)
The Globe Insurance Company Limited

The Manine Insurance Company Limited*

Royal International Insurance Holdings Limited*
Royal & Sun Alhance Reinsurance Limited*

Sun Insurance Office Limited

General 1nsurance
Holding company
General insurance
Holding company
General insurance
General insurance

Argentina Royal & Sun Alliance Seguros (Argentina) SA General insurance
El Comercio Compaiiia de Seguros SA (96 7%) General insurance
Aseguradora de Créditos y Garantias SA (99 9%) General insurance
Bahrain Rovyal & Sun Alhance Insurance (Middle East) BSC (¢) (50 0%) General insurance
Brazil Royal & Sun Alliance Seguros (Brasily SA (99 9%) General insurance
Canada Roins Financial Services Limited Holding company
Quebec Assurance Company General insurance
The Johnson Corporation Holding company
Royal & Sun Alhance Insurance Company of Canada General insurance
Western Assurance Company General insurance
Canadian Northern Sheeld Insurance Company General insurance
L’Union Canadienne Compagnie D’ Assurances General insurance
Chile RSA Seguros (Chile) SA (99 5%) General 1nsurance
China Sun Allance Insurance (China) Limuted* General insurance
Colombia Royal & Sun Alhance Seguros (Colombia) SA (86 7%) General insurance
Denmark Codan A/S Holding company
Codan Forsikring A/S General insurance
Guernsey Insurance Corporation of the Channel Islands Limited* General insurance
Isle of Man Tower Insurance Company Limited General insurance
Mexico Royal & SunAlhance Seguros (Mexico) SA de CV General insurance

Netherlands

Republic of Ireland

RSA Overseas {Netherlands) BV
RSA Overseas Holdings BY

RSA Insurance Ireland Limited*

Holding company
Holding company

General 1nsurance

Sweden Trygg-Hansa Forsakrnings AB General insurance
Uruguay Royai & Sun Alliance Seguros (Uruguay) SA General msurance
Notes

1 UK companies are incorporated in Great Bntain and are registered 1in England & Wales,
*100% direct subsidiary of Royal & Sun Alhance Insurance plc

2 Except where indicated all holdings are of equity shares and represent 100% of the nominal 1ssued capital

3 Some subsidianies have been omitted from this statement to avord providing particulars of excessive length

4 A complete hst of subsidianies will be attached to the Company's Annual Return lodged at Compantes House
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35. Post Balance Sheet Events

On 18 February 2015 the Company announced the agreement to sell its 26% holding 1n Royal Sundaram Alhance Insurance
Company Limited, proceeds are expected to be approximately £46m

Dunng February 2015 RSAI plc entered 1nto an adverse development cover reinsurance contract with RSAI Ireland RSAI pic

recerved premium of €182 5m and provides cover subject to an aggregate linit of €250m attaching at an aggregate retention of
€475m This transaction 1s not expected to matenally effect the solvency position of the Company
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